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NOTICE OF AGM

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 41st Annual General Meeting
of INTERNATIONAL BREWERIES PLC will hold at the Conference
Hall, Protea Hotel, Nekede Pocket Layout, Owerri, Imo State on
Wednesday 30 May, 2018 at 10.00.a.m. for the following
purposes:
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1 To lay before the meeting the report of the Directors, the
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December, 2017,
together with the Statement of Comprehensive Income for
the year ended on that date and the Reports of Auditors and
the Audit Committee
2 To elect/re-elect Director(s).
3 To appoint a new independent auditor to replace the retiring
Messrs.' BakerTilly Nigeria. Notice is hereby given that the
proposed independent auditor to be appointed is
PricewaterhouseCoopers ‘Pwc’.
4 To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the
Independent Auditors.
5 To elect members of the Audit Committee.
SPECIAL BUSINESS
6 To approve the remuneration of the Directors.
7 To authorize the Company to procure goods and services
necessary for its operations from related companies in
compliance with the Nigerian Stock Exchange Rules
governing transactions with related or Interested Parties
SPECIAL RESOLUTION
8 To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolutions
as Special resolutions altering the Memorandum and
Articles of Association:
a. To increase the number of Directors of the Company from
ten to thirteen by changing clause 34 of the Company's
Articles of Association to read “ Unless and until otherwise
determined by the Company at the general meeting, the
number of Directors shall not be less than seven nor more
than thirteen”
b. To reword Article 79 (Printed accounts to be sent to
members and others)“A copy of every balance sheet which is
to be laid before the Company in a general meeting,
together with the profit and loss account, the Directors'
report, the Audit Committee's report, the Auditors report and
every document required by law to be annexed thereto,
shall, not less than twenty-one days before the date of the
meeting be sent, either in printed or electronic form, by

c.

d.

courier or through any electronic means, to every member of
the Company and every holder of debenture of the Company
and every person registered in the register of members.
Provided that this Article shall not require that these
documents or any of them be sent to any person whose
address the Company is not aware of or to more than one of
the joint holders of any share or debenture”
To reword Article 54 (Proceedings of Directors) to read- “The
Directors may meet together for the dispatch of business
either physically or by virtual/electronic means, adjourn and
otherwise regulate their meetings as they deem fit.
Questions arising at any meeting shall be decided by a
majority of votes. In case of equality of votes, the Chairman
shall have a second or casting vote. A Director may and the
Secretary on the requisition of a Director shall at any time
summon a meeting of the Directors.”
“That the Company's Memorandum and Articles of
Association incorporating the above amendments be and is
hereby approved and adopted as the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company in substitution for
and to the exclusion of all previous editions.”

Dated 19 March, 2018.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Muyiwa Ayojimi
.
Company Secretary/General Counsel
FRC/2013/NBA/00000002667
Lawrence Omole Way, Ilesa - Nigeria.
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1. Proxy

4. Change of Address

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is
entitled to appoint a proxy in his/her stead. Such Proxy
need not be a member of the company. A Proxy for a
Corporation may vote on a show of hands and on a Poll. A
Proxy Form is attached to the Annual Reports and
Accounts. If the Proxy is to be valid for the purposes of the
meeting, it must be completed, detached, with stamp
Duties and deposited with the Registrars, Apel Capital
Registrars, 8 Alhaji Bashorun Street, off Norman Williams,
S.W. Ikoyi, Lagos the office of the Company Secretary,
International Breweries Plc, Ilesa not later than 48 hours
prior to the time of the meeting.

Members are requested to notify the Registrar of changes,
if any, their registered addresses and other details.
5. Unclaimed Dividend
Members who are yet to claim their previous dividend(s)
are advised to write to or call at the office of the Registrars,
Apel Capital Registrars, 8 Alhaji Bashorun Street, off
Norman Williams, S.W. Ikoyi, Lagos. Members are further
urged to advise the Registrar of any change in their
security records and also, open a CSCS account.
6. General Mandate Circular

2. Closure of Register and Transfer Books
The Register of Members and Transfer Books will be closed
from Monday 14 May, 2018 to Wednesday 16 May, 2018
(both dates inclusive) for updating the Register of
Members.

A circular on the resolution for shareholders' approval of
the general mandate for recurrent transactions with
related parties which provides the rationale for the
mandate sought is included in the Annual Report and
Financial Statements.

3. Nomination to the Audit Committee

7. Securities Holder's Rights

In accordance with Section 359 (5) of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act, Cap.C20, Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria, 2004, any member may nominate a Shareholder
as a member of the Audit Committee by giving notice in
writing of such nomination to the Company Secretary at
least 21 days before the Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with Rule 19.12 of the Nigerian Stock
Exchange “NSE”, shareholders and other holders of the
Company's securities have the right to ask questions not
only at the meeting but can also do so in writing prior to the
meeting. Such questions and or concerns, arising from
the Annual Report and Financial Statements may be
submitted to the office of the Company Secretary with a
copy forwarded to the NSE.

NOTES

NOTES
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BRIEF HISTORY

BRIEF HISTORY

International Breweries Plc was incorporated in December 1971 by its
founder and first Chairman, Dr. Lawrence Omole under the name
International Breweries Limited. The Company commenced production of its
flagship product, Trophy Lager in December 1978 with an installed capacity of
200,000 hectoliters per annum.

Following the increasing demand for its products, in December 1982 the
Company embarked on an expansion programme to increase its capacity to
500,000 hectoliters annually. The company was listed on the floor of the
Nigerian Stock Exchange in April 1995.

In 2008 a turnaround strategy was implemented and the company
successfully raised funds from the Nigerian Capital Market with the issuance
of 1.6 million Ordinary Shares of 50 Kobo each at 87K per share. This funding
started the resurgence of the organization and its brands.
In 2008 the Warsteiner Group sold its majority shareholding to the Castel
Group and in January 2012 SABMiller Plc entered into a strategic alliance with
the Castel group. During this period, significant investment was made which
transformed the company and provided it with a solid foundation for growth
and profitability. Starting with just two brands, Trophy Lager and Betamalt, the
company has since 2010 introduced Grand Malt, La Voltic water, Hero Lager,
Castle Milk Stout, Castle Lager, Miller Genuine Draft, Redds, Eagle and 1960
Rootz. A number of pack extensions were also introduced to satisfy new
consumer occasions.
In 2017 the Board through a scheme of merger sanctioned by the Federal
High Court, merged with Intafact Beverages Limited and Pabod Breweries
Limited (companies with similar objects) in order to provide for the
optimization of efficiencies, leverage on economies of scale and ensure
shareholder value creation amongst others.
This has increased our production facilities, apart from Ilesa, to Portharcourt
and Onitsha with corporate headquarters of the Company moving to Lagos. In
addition to the site in Ilesa, our production facilities have extended to Onitsha
and Portharcourt, with Corporate headquarters in Lagos. In addition, the
Company operates depots in Ibadan, Lagos and Ilorin to facilitate the redistribution of its products in the wider urban areas.

With its new strategic position and its increasing portfolio of local and world
class beverages the Company is fully positioned to satisfy increasing
consumer demand and in so doing delivering superior returns to
shareholders.
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Chairman:

Mr. Sunday Akintoye Omole

Directors:

Mrs. Annabelle Degroot

(British)

Mr Michiel Oerlemans

(South African)

-

Mr. Gustav Van Heerden
Mr. Christopher Tyne

(South African)
(South African)

-

Mr. Zuber Momoniat
Mr. Ryan Martin
Mr. Andries Du Plessis
Mr. Folorunsho Awomolo
Mrs. Afolake Lawal

(South African)
(South African)
(South African)

-

Alternate Directors:

Mr. Olugbenga Awomolo
Ms. Abisola Olabinjo

(Mr. Folorunsho Awomolo)
(Mrs. Afolake Lawal)

Company Secretary:

Mr. Muyiwa Ayojimi

Registered Office:

Lawrence Omole Way,
Omi Asoro, Ilesa.

Brewery Plants:
Ilesa Plant

Lawrence Omole Way
Omi-Asoro, Ilesa
Osun State

Onitsha Plant

SABMiller Drive, Harbour Industrial Layout
Onitsha
Anambra State

Port Harcourt Plant

186/187 Trans-Amadi Industrial Layout
Oginigba, Port Harcourt, Rivers State.

Registered Number:

RC 9632

Independent Auditors:

Baker Tilly Nigeria,
Chartered Accountants,
Zion House,
46 Alaafin Avenue,
Oluyole Industrial Estate,
Ibadan.
Email: btnib@bakertillynigeria.com

Registrar:

Apel Capital Registrars Limited,
No. 18 Alhaji Bashorun Street,
Off Norman Williams street,
Ikoyi, Lagos.
Email: registrars@apel.com.ng

Bankers:

CitiBank Limited
Ecobank Plc.
First Bank of Nigeria Plc.
Guaranty Trust Bank plc.
Skye Bank Plc.
Stanbic IBTC Plc.
Standard Chartered Bank Limited.
Union Bank of Nigeria
Wema Bank Plc.
Zenith Bank Plc.
Rand Merchant Bank Ltd.

MD Designate
(appointed:11 Oct.,2017)
Chief Operating officer –
(resigned 28 Feb. 2018)
(resigned 19 March, 2018)
Executive
(resigned 19 March, 2018)
(appointed 26 February, 2018)
(resigned: 12 Sept.,2017)
(resigned: 11 Oct.,2017)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL HIGLIGHTS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
December
2017
N'000

March
2017
N'000

Increase/
(Decrease)
%

Revenue

36,527,807

32,711,218

11.67%

Gross profit
(Loss)/Profit before tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

13,707,887
(3,199,616)
1,429,320

15,164,459
2,891,749
1,034,357

(9.61%)
(211%)
38%

253,820,704
211,444,712
42,375,992

44,962,735
31,083,975
13,878,760

465%
580%
205%

110,020,801
8,098,186

11,403,456
1,165,203

865%
595%

3%
38%
9%
1%

7%
46%
25%
18%

(57%)
(17%)
(64%)
(94%)

215%

96%

(119%)

1,448

556

160%

17 kobo
493kobo

31 kobo
421 kobo

(45%)
17%

Key items in statement of comprehensive income:

Key items in statement of financial position:
Total assets
Total liabilities
Total equity as at end of the year
Key cash flow items from/ (applied to):
Net cash flow from operating activities
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Key ratios:
Net return on total equity
Gross profit to revenue
Operating result on revenue
Operating result on total assets
Debt to equity
Headcount:
Number of employees
Information per 50kobo ordinary share:
Earnings per share
Net assets per share
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THE BOARD

THE BOARD

SUNDAY AKINTOYE OMOLE
Sunday Akintoye Omole is a
graduate of the premier
University Ibadan, where he
obtained a B.Sc in Sociology.
He is a member of the
Association of Chartered and
Certified Accountants U.K,
and holds an MBA
specialization in Human
Resources from Everest
University, United States of
America. Mr. Omole has
acquired wide working
experience both locally and
internationally. The scope of
his working life include
accounting, auditing and tax
practices, food and
beverages industries
restructuring, commodities,
futures market analysis,
financial services and human
resources management.
Mr. Omole is on the Board of
directors of a few other
companies including Cardinal
Investments (Nigeria) limited,
Mustard Concept LLC (USA),
the Omole Group and
Universal foods and
Beverages.
Prior to his appointment, he
was the Chairman of the
C o m p a n y ' s r i s k
Management/Remuneration
Committee as well as a
member of the Audit
Committee.

ANNABELLE DEGROOT

ZUBER MOMONIAT

AFOLAKE LAWAL

OLUGBENGA AWOMOLO

Prior to her appointment as

Zuber is a Chartered
Accountant with close to two
decades of cognate practice.
He holds a National Diploma
in Biotechnology from the
Witwatersrand Technikon in
South Africa, a BCom in
accounting as well as BCom
Honours in financial
accounting from the
University of Witwatersrand in
Johannesburg, South Africa.
Zuber began his accounting
career with PriceWaterHouse
Coopers “Pwc” in 2003 and
went on to join the then
SABMiller group as group
reporting manager for
SABMiller Africa and Asia and
later Finance Manager for
SABMiller Africa. He has
proven insight on financial
management which was
exhibited at Zambian
Breweries. He was the
Finance Manager at PABOD
Breweries Limited
(Subsidiary of ABInbev) from
where he was appointed as
the Finance Director
International Breweries Plc.

Afolake is a co-founder of the
GTI Group. She is currently
the Group Executive Director
with over two decades wealth
of experience in investment
Banking, Corporate
Governance and Business
Strategy.
She is a certified Pension
Practitioner and an Associate
member of the National
Institute of Marketing of
Nigeria (NIMN). This banking
amazon has an honors
degree in Law (LLB) from the
Anglia Ruskin University,
Cambridge U.K. She is an
alumnus of ObafemiAwolowo
University and holds a
Masters degree in
International Law and
Diplomacy from the
University of Lagos. She also
obtained a Masters of
Science in Corporate
Governance and Finance
from the Liverpool John
Moores University in the U.K.
She serves on the board of
International Breweries Plc
and Etema Plc (both
Companies quoted on The
Nigerian Stock Exchange).
She is currently the
Chairperson of Etema Plc’s
Governance Committee and
also Chairperson,
Governance Committee of

He is currently an Executive
Director (Operations) at Alumaco
Plc and sits on the Board of several
companies including IB PLC. Prior
to this, he has worked in different
capacities as an Investment
Executive at Newco Investment
Limited, Nigeria, as an Immigration
Consultant at Midwest
Immigration Consultants, in the
United States and as an
Operations manager at Midwest
Staffing Group, USA. He also has a
Law degree from the University of
Wales, Cardiff.

BU President for ABInBev
W.A, Annabelle Degroot
served as Managing Director,
Executive

Director

of

Zambian Breweries Plc. She
was the Finance Director of
the Company between
February

2012

and

December 2014. Annabelle
has almost 20 years of
experience in audit, finance
and commercial functions in
her working career in the
United Kingdom and Zambia.
She holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics from
Cambridge University and a
Master of Arts degree in
Economics from Cambridge
University, and is a qualified
Chartered Accountant with
the Institute of Chartered
Accountants, England and
Wales (ICAEW). She is a
Fellow of Zambian Institute of
Chartered Accountants
(ZICA)

MUYIWA AYOJIMI
(Company Secretary)
Muyiwa is a Barrister and Solicitor
of the Supreme Court of Nigeria
with 15 years of Law practice
which has cut across the conduct
of legal due diligence
investigations for Banks and
Insurance Companies; advice on
the regulatory and corporate
compliance issues; drafting of the
heads of terms and definitive
agreements with firsthand
experience at the Justice Ministry
in Lagos, a handful of private
companies and has practised
extensively before superior courts
of record in Nigeria.
He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators, International
Corporate Governance Network,
Nigerian Institute of Management,
The International Bar Association
and the Nigerian Bar Association.
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Profile of Director Nominees to the board

Profile of Director Nominees to the board

HRM IGWE PETER NWOKIKE
ANUGWU JP, OFR.

HRM IGWE NNAEMEKA
ALFRED UGOCHUKWU
ACHEBE CFR, MNI
His Majesty Nnaemeka A.
Achebe, Obi of Onitsha, had a 30year career with the Royal Dutch
Shell Petroleum Group of
Companies in Nigeria and
overseas. He is the past Chairman
of Diamond Bank PLC and
Intafact

Beverages

Ltd.

(subsidiary of ABInbev). He is the
Chairman of the Anambra State
Traditional Rulers Council and
Chancellor of Kogi State
University and Ahmadu Bello
University, Zaria. He was
educated at Stanford and
Columbia Universities in the U.S.A
and also attended the National
Institute for Policy and Strategic
Studies, Kuru. He was appointed
to the Board of Unilever Nigeria
Plc. in March 2003 and is
currently the Chairman of Board.

His Majesty Peter Nwokike Anugwu
holds a Diploma in Agricultural
Engineering from the School of
Agriculture, Umudike, Abia State.
He is a private entrepreneur. He is
the holder of various congressional
Honors, Proclamations and Keys
from several cities in the United
States of America and a director of
the board of directors of the World
Conference of Mayors. He was
conferred with the National Honor
of the Order of the Federal Republic
of Nigeria (OFR). He is the
Chairman of the Board of Directors
of Julius Berger Services Nigeria
Limited and a Member of the
Boards of Intafact Beverages
Limited and Orient Petroleum
Limited. He was appointed to the
Board of Julius Berger Nigeria Plc
on May 2, 1996 as an Independent
Director on the Board and
chairman of the audit committee of
Julius Berger Nigeria Plc. He is the
Chairman of Julius Berger Services
Nigeria Limited.
His track record in the field of
commerce earned him the National
Award of the Officer of the Federal
Republic “OFR”. He was a nonexecutive director of Intafact
Beverages Limited prior to his
nomination to the Board of
International Breweries Plc.

MICHAEL ONOCHIE AJUKWU

ABIYE TOBIN-WEST

Mr. Ajukwu is an astute
professional with combined
expertise and contribution to
Stakeholder engagement, risk
advisory, general management
and corporate finance spanning
over three decades.
He holds a BSc (Finance) from
the prestigious University of Lagos
and an MBA from the New York
University. He served as an
Executive Director, Corporate
Banking with United Bank for
Africa. Mr. Ajukwu has over 21
years of experience in the banking
industry with specialty in the
Energy and Multinational sector.
He has extensive business
experience in Africa and
particularly in Nigeria. He serves
as Chairman of Altech West Africa
Limited, Munca Properties
Limited and Mobax Nigeria Ltd.
He has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Tiger
Brands Limited since March 31,
2015. He served as nonexecutive director on the boards
of Intafact Beverages Ltd, a
subsidiary of ABInbev in Nigeria
and Novotel, Port Harcourt,
Nigeria,(a member of Accor
hotels group)

Abiye Tobin-West is a seasoned
Civil Servant with several years of
experience. She is currently the
Permanent Secretary of Ministry
of Finance Incorporated (MOFI),
Rivers State.
A highly experienced Economist,
Tobin-West is well versed in issues
of taxation, management of
investment portfolios including
recapitalization and divestments.
In the course of her career, Abiye
Tobin-West has participated in
many seminars, workshops home
and abroad.
As an astute Public Administrator,
To b i n -W e s t h a s c o g n a t e
experience in corporate
governance and served in several
Boards of corporations as
Government representative
including the Board of Internal
Revenue services, Rivers State
Tourism Development Authority,
Rivers Microfinance Agency,
Nigeria Engineering Works and
RIVERSCOOP Limited.
Abiye Tobin-West is a life member
of Economic Society of Nigeria, a
fellow of Chartered Institute of
Taxation, and a member of
Institute of Cost and
Management Accountants.

Profile of Director Nominees to the board
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PHILLIP REDMAN
Phil Redman holds an MBA from the
London Business School (recently
ranked as #1 global business
school) and a Master's degree in
Mechanical Engineering from the
University of Bristol, UK
Phil had a stint with Honeywell,
where he started as a graduate
trainee moving through a series of
Technical roles and leaving the
company as the Strategic Marketing
Director where he led the
development and creation of the 5
year growth strategy across the
globe.
Phil joined SABMiller in 2012, as an
Innovation Manager in the Group
Office in London. He was promoted
within a year to Senior Portfolio
Manager leading the development of
portfolio and category strategy
across Africa. Whilst occupying this
position, Phil worked with the
Tanzanian business to position the
business for growth in a number of
new areas, leading to numerous
product launches targeting
consumers and occasions. He also
worked with the South African
Breweries, supporting the
transformation of the business from
brand-based growth to an integrated
category growth.
Phillip Redman is the General
manager of Accra Breweries, Ghana.

MICHAEL DARAMOLA

Michael Daramola attended the
prestigious Kings College Lagos.
He studied Industrial Economics
in the then Soviet Union in 1986,
He returned to Nigeria with a First
Class Honors in Industrial Finance
from the U.S.S.R. At different
times he worked with the Central
Bank of Nigeria, L.M Ericsson
Nigeria Limited and later, MicCom
Cables & Wires. He later set up his
own outfit called Ladyet Ventures
Limited. In 1994, in conjunction
with some foreign technical
partners from the UK, he set up
MicBeth Nig. Ltd; an electromechanical company with an
office in London, that specializes
in the rewinding of electric motors
and alternators for generators as
well as supplying essential spares
to industries. The company has
grown extensively with projects
from both private and government
institutions spanning the country.

GODWIN OCHE
Godwin has a background in
Chemical Engineering and holds a
Post Graduate Diploma in
Business Administration and an
MBA from the Enugu State of
Science and Technology Business
School. He is a member of the
Institute of Management and the
Institute of Personnel
Management. Godwin brings with
him to the Board, about two
decades of sales and marketing
experience with continental and
merit awards. Prior to joining
Intafact Beverages Limited in
2010 as the pioneer district
manager, he was the Trade and
Marketing distribution area
manager in British American
Tobacco.
In January 2016 as a result of the
integration of SABMiller &
ABInBev, Godwin was made the
Regional Director Intafact
Beverages Ltd to take full
accountability of the entire
business at Onitsha.
He is
currently the National Sales
Director for International
Breweries.
Godwin Oche was an executive
Director on the Board of Intafact
Beverages and also a trustee on
the Board of Hero Foundation

INTERNATIONAL BREWERIES PLC // 2017 ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11

Fellow Shareholders,
This was an exciting year that saw the long awaited combination
of International Breweries Plc (IB Plc) with Intafact Ltd and Pabod
Breweries Ltd (PB Ltd). The merged entity will be known as
International Breweries Plc and was welcomed positively by the
market. Our combined business now hosts our strong national
Trophy, Hero, Castle Lite, Eagle, Grand Malt and Beta Malt
brands. We are confident that the combined business will
emerge as a stronger, more formidable business in the Nigerian
beverage sector.
Our new position in the local market is backed by our largest
shareholder, Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV (AB InBev), The
world's largest and most respected brewer in the world. A
winning combination of local and international strength. With this
I welcome you to the 41st Annual General Meeting of our great
Company.
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT
From an operating perspective, it was a difficult year as the
impact of the recession continued to restrict our consumer's
disposable income. The economic recovery gained steam in the
final quarter of 2017, with growth in GDP rising slightly but this
did not start to filter to our consumers until early 2018.
The alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverage sector remained highly
competitive with aggressive marketing and heavy discounting.
Despite the tough operating conditions, we saw solid progress
with the key components of our business model – being in the
right markets, having the right brand portfolio, creating the right
operating processes, building the right partnerships and
delighting our consumers. Our work in these areas has continued
to drive sales and revenue growth.
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE/ RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
These are the first consolidated numbers for the merged entities.
Specifically, the old IB Plc results from 1 April, 2017 to 31
December, 2017 and the results for PB Ltd and Intafact Ltd from
13 November, 2017 to 31 December, 2017. The year-end
having also changed from 31 March to 31 December following
the AB InBev integration created a comparison of 12months
versus 9months. This does make comparisons difficult but will
allow us to have a full year of consolidated results in 2018.
The brighter side of our financial result is the ever increasing
growth in net revenue which was up by 11% against prior year.
Indeed there were contractions in gross margin owing to

inflationary and exchange pressures. As is often the case in
mergers, we were required to put a number of one off costs
through the final quarter with respect to restructuring costs, the
merger costs and increased provisions for empty containers and
bad debts in line with our parent's reporting requirements.
Without these one of adjustments, International Breweries Plc
demonstrated good operating growth for the period.
The Board is aware of the gearing ratio and finance costs and
together with management is already working out a program in
this regard.
A WINING TEAM
Our greatest strength is our people. The combined experience of
our diverse people team from the three companies is about a
100 years. The various integration on people and technical
processes were almost concluded by the year end.
The new culture and ways of working in line with the dream of AB
InBbev had found expression. A just concluded internal
engagement survey for AB InBbev Africa had our Company
coming 2nd in Africa, a result which demonstrated our
employee's belief in the future. The driving force behind our
culture is our 10 Principles. Built on ownership, informality,
candour, transparency and meritocracy. We set ourselves,
stretch targets and are never completely satisfied with our
results.
Our workforce has grown from becoming our enduring advantage
to a company of owners.
GROWING RETURNS FOR SHAREHOLDERS
In the year under review, International Breweries Plc continued to
focus on creating and expanding opportunities, by investing for
the long term, building on our strong position as the brewer of
many of the regional favourite beer and beverage brands, to a
national position and constantly striving to deliver on big goals
and even bigger dreams.
In the period, the Company moved up from the 15th prior year
position to the 6th position by year end on the Nigerian Stock
Exchange based on market capitalisation. A significant
appreciation of our shares from N10 to N58.7 as at year end is
worthy of mention as shares were valuably traded and
demonstrated our shareholders belief in the future.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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SHARE PRICE GROWTH FROM APRIL 2017 - DECEMBER 2017
PRICE

Linear (PRICE)

70.00

50.00

40.00
PRICE

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

60.00

30.00

20.00

10.00

03/04/2017

03/05/2017

03/06/2017

03/07/2017

03/08/2017
03/09/2017
DATES

GOVERNANCE AND BOARD
The Board is responsible for setting the right tone from the top
and ensuring that a robust governance structure is in place to
enable the business to succeed and deliver long-term
sustainable growth.
By the year end, Mr. Ryan Martin and Mr. Andries Du Plessis
resigned their appointments from the board. Between the year
end and penultimate this meeting, Christopher Tyne and Michiel
Oerlemans also resigned their appointments. We offer our
heartfelt gratitude to them for the direction they gave to the vision
of the Company.
We had the pleasure of welcoming Mrs Annabelle Degroot as our
new Managing Director of the enlarged entity and Zuber
Momoniat as the Finance Director. Both Directors join us with
invaluable experience and have demonstrated that they are more
than willing and able to build our company for the future.
At this year's AGM meeting, the Board will be enlarged. This is to
ensure that the board reflects the face of the enlarged entity and
is able to sustain the ever robust nature of our oversight function.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
As we emerge from 2017 as a bigger combined business, our
responsibility to be a responsible business in our operating
environment and our communities only increases. 2018 will see
us combine the activities of our three entities into a more
focussed and effective approach. We look forward to sourcing
more of our inputs locally, building our entrepreneurship and
community programs while of course reinforcing our responsible
drinking programs in our communities.

03/10/2017

03/11/2017

03/12/2017

FUTURE OUTLOOK
We remain optimistic for the outlook for 2018 and beyond. We
will continue to develop and differentiate our brand portfolios,
taking opportunities to grow sales and improve our mix. With the
exciting news of our Sagamu brewery coming on line mid year
2018, we will have capacity to continue our expansion plans.
2018 will also see the launch of Budweiser, the King of Beers, our
first real entry into the premium beer market.
Focus will be maintained on cost effectiveness and synergy
delivery. Healthy cash generation will again be a priority. We will
target investments in production capacity, marketing and sales
capability and business systems in order to drive medium-term
growth.
CONCLUSION
We have always been a company of owners, and we take results
personally as we constantly drive toward a better future. While
our results for the nine-month ended December 2017, were
below expectation, the prospect of a return to profitability is
imminent. Our underlying financial position remains strong, as
does our medium-term outlook for growth in volume, revenue
and profitability.
Thank you.

Sunday Akintoye Omole
Chairman.
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The directors have the pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited annual financial statements for the nine-month
period ended 31 December 2017.
1

Legal form
International Breweries Plc was incorporated as a private limited liability company on 22 December, 1971 and became a
public limited liability company on 26 April, 1994.

2

Principal activities and business review
The principal activities of the company continue to be brewing, packaging and marketing of beer, alcoholic flavoured and
non-alcoholic beverages and soft drinks.

3

Operating summary

Revenue
(Loss)/Profit before tax
Taxation
Profit after tax for the period

9-Months ended
December
2017
N'000

12-Months ended
March
2017
N'000

36,527,807
=======
(3,199,616)
4,628,936
1,429,320
=======

32,711,218
=======
2,891,749
(1,857,392)
1,034,357
=======

54.50

16

Per 50 kobo share data
Market value as at 31 December, 2017 (Naira)

4

Dividend Declaration
The Board maintains a dividend policy which guides its decision on dividend declaration.
The Directors resolved not to recommend the payment of a dividend for the period ended 31 December, 2017 owing to the loss
sustained during the period and the company’s gearing ratio in line with this policy.
The Board views this decision as appropriate in the circumstance and in the future interest of the company. (March-2017: Nil
kobo; March-2016: 32kobo).

5

Directors
The names of the directors as at period end are as set out in the corporate information page. The following directors served
during the period under review but resigned before 31 December, 2017: Mr. Ryan Martin and Mr. Andries Du Plessis.
There have also been changes in the composition of the board between 31 December, 2017 and the date of the issuance of
the Notice for this Annual General Meeting. During this period, Mr. Michiel Oerlemans, Mr. Gustav Van Heerden and Mr.
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Thus, as at the date of issuance of the Notice for this Annual General Meeting, the Board of Directors is composed of the
following: Mr. Akintoye Omole, Mrs. Annabelle Degroot, Mrs. Afolake Lawal, Mr. Zuber Momoniat and Mr. Awomolo.
Details of the Directors' interest in the company's shares during the period are set out below.
Directors' shareholding
Name

Dec-2017
Number

Mar-2017
Number

________________________________________________________________________________________
Direct holding:
Mr. Sunday Akintoye Omole
Mrs. Afolake Lawal
Indirect holding:
Mr.Folorunsho Awomolo
(Through Newco Investment Company Limited)

72,647
1,582,694

50,247
1,582,694

106,904,126

106,904,126

968,087

968,087

Mr. Sunday Akintoye Omole
(Through Cardinal Investment Nigeria limited)
6

Directors' interest in contracts
The directors have complied with the provisions of Section 277 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap.20 LFN
2004 at the date of this report.

7

Corporate Governance
This report describes the directors' approach to corporate governance and how the board applied the Codes on corporate
governance and other applicable regulations.
The directors are committed to maintaining the best standard which they believe is pivotal to the discharge of their stewardship
expectations. In his statement as contained in this annual report, the Chairman captures the essence of the principles of the
code in relation to the role and effectiveness of the board. During the year under review the company further established good
corporate governance practices in line with the conviction of the company rather than a perfunctory response to the threat of
regulatory sanctions. The company's conviction is that corporate governance practices should be accorded a more practical
approach in enhancing company ideals and management performance.
(I)

Leadership and effectiveness
Board of directors: composition, independence and renewal
The board was composed of at year end, the chairman, four non-executive directors and two executive directors.
The board considers its directors as at year end and as at the time of this report as independent for the purpose of their
contributions to the invaluable integrity, corporate wisdom and experience towards the board and committees' deliberations
and decisions. The board is therefore satisfied with the performance and continued independence of judgment of each of the
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The ratification of appointments as director of Mrs. Annabelle Degroot and Mr. Zuber Momoniat will be proposed at this
annual general meeting.
The board will also propose at this annual general meeting, the appointment of Igwe Nnaemeka Alfred Achebe, Igwe Peter
Anugwu, Mr. Michael Ajukwu, Abiye Tobin-West, Mr. Philip Redman, Mr. Michael Daramola and Mr. Godwin Oche as Directors of
the Company to create an enlarged board following the conclusion of the merger with Intafact Beverages Limited and Pabod
Breweries Limited.
The profile of the directors proposed for election is set out in pages 10 and 11 of the annual report.

(ii) The Board's Operation
Board meetings and attendance
The Board of directors met three times during the nine months period. Individual Director's attendance at these meetings is as
set out in the table below. In the few instances where a director was unable to attend a board or committee meeting, his or her
alternate attended in his stead and any comments which they had on matters set out in the agenda for consideration at such
meeting was given in advance to the chairman of the meeting.
Analysis of attendance of meetings of Board members

NAME OF DIRECTOR

Mr. Akintoye Omole (Chairman)
Mrs. Annabelle Degroot (MD Designate) (ADY)
Mr. Michael Oerlemans (C.O.O.)
Mr. Gustav Van Heerden
Mr. Christopher Tyne (Exec. Dir.)
Mrs. Afolake Lawal
Mr. Olugbenga Awomolo
Mr. Ryan Martin (RDY)
Mr. Andries Du Plessis (RDY)

--------------Date of meeting--------------23/05/2017 02/06/2017 12/09/2017
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y‡
Y‡
Y‡
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y Present
X Absent

(ADY) - Appointed during the year
(RDY) – Resigned during the year

‡ Alternate Director
- Not a member of the Board as at that date

NUMBER OF
MEETINGS
ATTENDED
Total
3/3
1/1
3/3
1/3
3/3
3/3
3/3
3/3
3/3

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
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Operation of the board
The board sets the strategic objectives and delegates to
management. The detailed planning and implementation of
those policies. The board thereafter monitors compliance of
the actualization of the set policies and objectives through
quarterly reports to the board and its committees, enabling
directors to explore and interrogate specific issues for feedback
in greater detail.
The board and its committee meetings are held in an
atmosphere of robust, constructive and intellectual debate of
issues with sincerity of purpose, integrity and mutual respect.

Matters of exclusive preserve
The board has a schedule of matters as contained in an
approval grid which is dealt with exclusively by the board. This
includes but not limited to the approval of financial statements;
annual expenditure/budget plan; material investment or
disposals and the Company's business strategy.
The board governs through its established committees with
reporting systems. Each committee or standing committee has
specific written terms of reference and committee charters. All
committee chairmen or their representatives report to the
board and their decision extracts are included in the board
packs circularized to all the board members two weeks before
their meetings.
Risk and the board of directors
The company's Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for
the company's risk management system and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The company, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations. The risk
management system is designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
there is an ongoing process in place for identifying, assessing,
managing, monitoring and reporting on the significant risks
faced by the company.
The company's Audit Committee oversees how management
monitors compliance with the company's risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the
company. The Internal Audit function has been expanding in

line with our global risk management structure. The activities
and capabilities of the new initiative are far more improved than
the traditional internal audit functions. The new structure will
develop business insights, improve our operations and manage
risks in a smart and proactive way using analytical technics
supported by a strong team.
This process has been established for the period under review
up to the approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. The
principal risks and uncertainties facing the company are set out
in Note 35.
Conflict of interest
The directors are aware and advised to avoid situations where
they have, or can have, a direct or indirect interest that
conflicts, or may possibly conflict with the company's interests
and encouraged to make full disclosures. In accordance with
the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2004 and the company's
articles of association, the board can authorize potential
conflicts of interest that may arise and to impose such limit or
conditions as it may deem fit. There were however, no actual or
potential conflicts of interest which were required to be
authorized by the board during the period ended 31 December
2017.
The roles of executive and non-executive directors
The executive directors are responsible for proposing strategy
and for making and implementing operational decisions. Nonexecutive directors complement the skills and experience of
the executive directors, bringing independent judgment and
making inputs through their knowledge and experience of other
businesses and sectors.
Information dissemination and training
The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the board,
through the chairman, on issues of corporate governance. The
secretariat supplies the board and its committees with full and
timely information through meeting packs and other sufficient
resources to enable directors prepare adequately for their
meetings and take informed decisions.
The company is committed to the continuing development of
directors in order that they can build on their expertise and
develop an ever more detailed understanding of the business
and the ever changing legal and regulatory environment.
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Other appointments

(iii)

Non-executive directors may serve on the boards of other
companies in order to widen their experience and knowledge
for the company's benefit. Directors ensure that their
effectiveness on the board is not compromised by their external
commitments. The board is pleased that the chairman and the
non-executive directors commit sufficient time to their duties
and the non-executive directors have confirmed that they have
sufficient time to fulfil their respective obligations to the
company.

The audit committee chaired by Mr. Oladepo Adesina met two
times during the nine months period under review. The
members representing the shareholders are Mr. Moses
Ijayekunle and Mr. Adetunji Ajani Babajide; Mrs. Afolake Lawal
and Mr. Olugbenga Awomolo are board representatives.
The external auditors and the executive director, finance
attended the committee meetings by invitation. The work of the
committee during the period included Audit matters and
reviews.

Board, committee and director performance evaluation
The Board subscribes to performance evaluation processes in
line with best practice. A formal evaluation of the board's
performance was carried out for the year ended 31 March,
2017.The board considers its performance in the year under
review as satisfactory and largely in compliance with prescribed
codes of corporate governance.
The Company Secretary
The Company Secretary who acts as secretary to the board and
its committees attended all the meetings during the year under
review.

The audit committee reports all activities and makes
recommendations to the board. During the period under
review, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities as
they are defined in the committee's terms of reference and has
ensured that applicable standards of governance and
compliance are adhered to.
The internal control/audit manager has direct access to the
committee, primarily through its chairman. The department
has the benefit of adapting the workings and processes of
approved international and best practice templates for
improved efficiency.

Analysis of attendance of meetings of Audit Committee members for the period
NUMBER
OF
MEETINGS
ATTENDED
Total

NAME OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER

Mr.Oladepo Adesina
Mr. Moses Ijayekunle
Mr. Adetunji Ajani Babajide
Mr. Timothy Adejuwon
Mrs. Afolake Lawal
Mr. Ryan Martin

- (Chairman/Shareholder)
- ( Member/Shareholder)
(Appointed 22/5/17)
‘’
(resigned 22/5/17)
‘’
- (Member/Director)
''
-

Date
22/05/
2017

11/09/
2017

Y

Y

2/2
2/2

Y
Y
Y

Y
Y
Y

2/2
2/2
2/2
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The Governance Committee
The Governance Committee is charged with the overall responsibility of ensuring that all governance reviews and strategic
plans were complied with.
The committee consisting of the Chairperson, Mrs. Afolake Lawal and two members - Mr. Ryan Martin and Mr. Olugbenga Awomolo
could only meet once during the nine months under review.
Analysis of attendance of meetings of Governance Committee members for the period

--------------------Date---------------------

NUMBER OF
MEETINGS
ATTENDED
Total

10/11/2017
Y
Y
Y

1/1
1/1
1/1

NAME OF GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE MEMBER

Mrs. Afolake Lawal
Mr. Olugbenga Awomolo
Mr. Ryan Martin

The Risk Management/Remuneration Committee
The purpose of the Risk Management/Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its obligations by providing a
focus on risk and other purposes, intended to enhance the Board's performance and at all times taking into consideration
established best practices. The Committee in that wise assists the Board in its oversight of the risk profile, risk management
framework, risk strategy and the remuneration framework as may be determined from time to time.
The Risk Management/Remuneration Committee is composed of two members: Mr. Olugbenga Awomolo and Mr. Andries Du
Plessis. The Committee also held only one meeting during the year.
Analysis of attendance of meetings of Risk Management/Remuneration Committee members
NAME OF RISK, MANAGEMENT/
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
MEMBER

Mr. Olugbenga Awomolo
Mr. Andries Du Plessis

NUMBER OF
MEETINGS
ATTENDED
--------------------Date--------------------11/09/2017

Total

Y
Y

1/1
1/1
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Share capital
As a result of the Scheme of merger approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission, sanctioned by the Court and
concluded during the period under review, and in order to give effect to the Scheme, the authorised share capital of
International Breweries Plc was increased from N2 billion to N4.3 billion by the creation of 4.6 billion ordinary shares of
50 kobo each to rank paripassu in all respects to form a single class with the existing ordinary shares of International
Breweries Plc as amended in the Memorandum of Association of the company.
Active shareholders range - summary position as at 31/12/2017
RANGE ANALYSIS AS AT 31-12-2017
Range
1

No. of Holders

Holders %

Holders Cum.

Units

Units %

Units Cum.

- 1,000

18,001

44.51%

18,001

9,869,262

0.11%

9,869,262

1,001 - 5,000

14,789

36.57%

32,790

36,971,450

0.43%

46,840,712

5,001 - 10,000

4,860

12.02%

37,650

41,259,424

0.48%

88,100,136

10,001 - 50,000

2,268

5.61%

39,918

50,982,644

0.59%

139,082,780

50,001 - 100,000

269

0.67%

40,187

18,493,400

0.22%

157,576,180

100,001 - 500,000

166

0.41%

40,353

34,403,219

0.40%

191,979,399

27

0.07%

40,380

62

0.15%

40,442

500,001 - 1,000,000
1,000,001 - 9,999,999,999
Grand Total

40,442

100.00%

0.26%

213,962,988

8,381,898,948

21,983,589

97.51%

8,595,861,936

8,595,861,936

100.00%

Substantial shareholding.
The particulars of the shareholders that held more than 5% of the issued and fully-paid share capital of the company as at
31 December, 2017 and at the date of this report are as follows:
NAME
Brauhaase International Management GMBH.
AB InBev Nigeria Holdings BV

HOLDING
2,377,579,013
4,072,100,915

%
27.66
47.37

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
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Shareholding by category:

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2017

S/N

CATEGORY OF
SHAREHOLDER

1

INDIVIDUALS

2

INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS

NO.
OF
SHAREHOLDER

NUMBER OF
SHARES HELD

PERCENTAGE
HOLDING [%]

39,781

639,566,405

7.44

Corporate

603

893,078,297

10.39

Institution

16

125,700

0.00

Pensioner

2

313,500

0.00

Tax free

4

8,567,587

0.10

3

STATE & LOCAL GOVT

9

604,334,427

7.03

4

FOREIGN SHAREHOLDER

26

4,072,297,007

47.38

Portfolio Investor

1

2,377,579,013

27.66

Total

40,442

8,595,861,936

100.00

Purchase of own shares
The company did not purchase any of its own shares during the period under review.
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Date

Authorised (N)
Increase

1971
1978
1980
1981
1981
1982
1982
1983
1985
1986
1988
1989
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1998
1999
2001
2002
2007
2008

1,000,000
2,500,000
2,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
30,000,000
100,000,000
110,000,000
1,240,000,000

2009
2012
2014
2017

500,000,000
2,300,000,000

Cumulative

Issued and Fully Paid -up (N)
Increase
Cumulative

4,500,000
5,500,000
5,500,000
8,000,000
8,000,000
8,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
15,000,000
15,000,000
20,000,000
20,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
150,000,000
150,000,000
150,000,000
150,000,000
150,000,000
260,000,000
260,000,000
1,500,000,000
1,500,000,000

1,000,000
1,300,000
1,100,000
100,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
5,000,000
15,841,770
2,709,846
2,496,000
51,867,000
204,000
213,000
51,608,000
60,384
106,457,341
800,000,000

4,500,000
4,500,000
5,500,000
6,800,000
7,900,000
8,000,000
9,000,000
10,000,000
12,000,000
15,000,000
18,000,000
20,000,000
25,000,000
40,841,770
43,551,616
46,047,616
97,914,616
98,118,616
98,331,616
149,939,616
150,000,000
256,457,341
256,457,341
1,056,457,341

Cash

1,500,000,000
2,000,000,000
2,000,000,000
4,300,000,000

574,805,874
15,861,425
2,650,806,320

1,056,457,341
1,631,263,215
1,647,124,640
4,297,930,960

Cash
Bonus
Consolidation

Consideration
Cash
Cash
Cash
Bonus
Cash
Bonus
Bonus
Bonus
Bonus
Bonus
Bonus
Bonus
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
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Corporate social responsibility
During the period under review, the company's corporate social responsibility towards its immediate and surrounding
communities, especially in respect of community development, health and education, the environment and other social welfare,
was again demonstrated in the various projects executed during the year and other donations both in cash and in the company's
products to various institutions and community centres. In response to the rising unemployment population among the youths in
Nigeria, one of the major projects carried out by the company during the period is the continuation of the Youth Enterprise
Development Initiative tagged “KICK START” initiated in 2016. The Kick Start program is aimed at creating a culture of
entrepreneurship among young people by promoting business awareness and material support through the development of
business skills by training; providing grants as start-up capital for new businesses or grants to support expansion of existing
businesses; and providing post investment support through mentoring and coaching. The amount expended on the program as
at 31 December, 2017 was thirty-six million, two hundred and forty eight thousand Naira (N36.248 million)(March 2017:
N36.248 million, 2016: N34 million). Other beneficiaries of the corporate social responsibility program of the company are as
listed below. Total expenditure for the period (including donations) was about N55 million (2016: N80 million). This excludes
gifts in company products during the period.
It is worthy of note that corporate social responsibility initiatives of this nature were also carried out in the other areas of the
company's operation- Onitsha and Porthacourt earlier in the year, but none within the consolidated period 13 November - 31
December, 2017.
Community projects and donations during the year included the following:
DESCRIPTION/PROJECT
Construction Of Garden Park At Erin Jesa Waterfall
Construction & Commissioning Of Sports Pavilion(Fed School Of Science&Tech,Ilesa)
Provision & Commisioning Of Borehole, Scaffold And Tank(Imobi-Jesa)
Provision Of Water Well For Doctors Quarter(Wesley Hospital, Ilesa)
Support For Renovation Of Block Of Classrooms(Aromolaran Middle Sch, Ilesa)
Provision & Commissioning Of Borehole & Water Tanks (Mokola Cultural Centre Community
Medical Missions To Omi Asoro Community
Don't Drink And Drive Campaign With Federal Road Safety Commission
Donation Of Food Items to the Previlege Homes (Ilesa)
Special Donations To Esa Odo Community
TOTAL

Naira
16million
3million
2million
0.35million
0.35million
2million
1million
0.5million
1million
2million
28.2Million

It remains the company's policy not to make donations to political organisations in the country and in compliance with section
38(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap C 20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, the Company did not make
any donation or gift to any political party, political association or for any political purpose during the year under review.
10

Ethical business conduct
The International Breweries Code of Business Conduct and Ethics as adopted from ABInbev, sets out high ethical standards with
which all company's employees are expected to comply, and forms part of the wider programme of policies and procedures
throughout the company. The company personnel are committed to conducting business in a way that is fair, ethical and within
the framework of applicable laws and regulations. During the course of the year, the company's policies and procedures were
reviewed in light of related ‘adequate procedures’ guidance, and developing corporate best practice, and made a number of
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13

The directors are satisfied that International Breweries
Plc is a going concern.
14

The directors are responsible for the management of the
business of the company and may exercise all the
powers vested on them by the company subject to the
articles of association and relevant statutes
15

16

Stakeholder's Engagement
We are a company of owners and the continuing need for
engagement is key to our success. The company knows
its stakeholders and proactively engage with them in
regular and constructive discuss thereby managing the
change communications at required times to ensuring
shared value for all.
The effective engagement of a broad spectrum of
shareholders was reflective of the cooperation enjoyed
on the timely and successful completion the merger
process within the period under review.

Research and development
To ensure improved overall operational effectiveness,
considerable emphasis is placed on research and
development in the company's technical activities,
through its ultimate parent company, the AB InBev.
Group. This enables it to develop new products,
packaging, processes and new manufacturing
capabilities.

Post balance sheet events
There are no post balance sheet events which could have
had a material effect on the state of affairs of the
company as at the balance sheet date being 31
December, 2017 which have not been adequately
disclosed in these financial statements.

The Company is ever committed to sustaining its policies
and programmes on occupational health and safety to
ensure a safe working environment for all its employees,
suppliers, consumers and visitors to our sites. We have
revised our policies on health and safety to enshrine
world class manufacturing practices.
12

Financial Risk
Information on the company's financial risk management
objectives and policies and details of its exposure to price
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk are
contained in note 35 to the financial statements.

Employment, environmental and health safety
policies
The company sustained most of its workforce postmerger. To achieve this, management identified and
matched the required skills and competencies within the
operations. The people team designed and continually
reviewed employment policies which attract, retain and
motivate the highest quality of staff. Management is
committed to an active equal opportunities policy, from
recruitment and selection, through training and
development, appraisal and promotion to retirement. It
is the company's policy to ensure that everyone is treated
equally, regardless of gender, colour, nationality, ethnic
origin, race, disability, marital status, religion or trade
union affiliation. The company is committed to its policy
on diversity as it understands that the benefit of
employing the right balance in people of different races,
genders, creeds and backgrounds.

Going concern

17

Complaints Management Policy
Complying with the rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission on framework for complaints management,
the Company and its Registrars provide responses within
its framework to shareholder issues and concerns. This
framework also provides the opportunity for shareholder
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enhancements, including the roll out of a new companywide anti-bribery policy. Key aspects covered by the
programme include, amongst other matters, our antibribery policy, due diligence and other forms of
compliances in relation to business partners, training of
employees and monitoring and reporting mechanisms.
Independent confidential whistle blower hotlines have
been re-introduced into the company's operations so
that employees and third parties can report any breach.

23
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feedbacks on matters that can affect its corporate
existence.
18

Security Trading Policy
The new board of the Company will consider and approve
a new trading policy having completed its merger in other
to comply with the Nigerian Stock Exchange rule on
establishing a trading policy for quoted companies.

19

Independent Auditor
Baker Tilly Nigeria is retiring as External Auditors of the
Company at this Annual General Meeting. Notice has
been given that the proposed independent auditor to be
appointed is PricewaterhouseCoopers ‘Pwc’. This will be
proposed as a resolution as well as directors
authorization to fix their remuneration.

By Order of the Board
Dated 19 March, 2018.

Muyiwa Ayojimi
.
Company Secretary/General Counsel
Ilesa, Nigeria.
FRC/2013/NBA/00000002667
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
The Directors accept responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial statements for the period ended
31 December, 2017, set out on pages 30 to 62 that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied
Matters Act CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria
Act, 2011.
The Directors further accept responsibility for maintaining adequate accounting records as required by the
Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004 and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether
due to fraud or error.
The Directors have made an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern and have no
reason to believe the company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead.

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS BY:

Akintoye Omole
Chairman
FRC/2017/IODN/00000016560
19 March, 2018

Annabelle Degroot
Managing Director
FRC/2017/IODN/00000018097
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In accordance with the provisions of Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap. C20 LFN 2004, we the
members of the Audit Committee of International Breweries Plc, having carried out our statutory functions under the Act, hereby
report as follows: -

(a)

That the accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with legal requirements
and acceptable ethical practices.

(b)

That the scope and planning of both the external and internal audit for the period ended
31 December, 2017 are satisfactory and reinforce the company's internal control systems.

(c)

That having reviewed the External Auditors' findings and recommendations on management matters, we are satisfied with
management responses thereon.

Finally, we acknowledge the co-operation of management, staff and the external auditors - Messrs Baker Tilly Nigeria in the
conduct of our duties.

Dated this 19 March, 2018

Mr. Oladepo Adesina
FRC/2013/NIM/00000003678
Chairman
Members of the Audit Committee

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Mr. Oladepo Adesina
Mr. Moses Ijayekunle
Mr. Adetunji Ajani Babajide
Mrs. Afolake Lawal
Mr. Akintoye Omole
Mr. Olugbenga Awomolo

-

Shareholder(Chairman)
Shareholder Member
Shareholder Member
Director Member
Director Member
Director Member

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL BREWERIES PLC

BAKERTILLY
NIGERIA

AUDITOR’S REPORT

Chartered Accountants

Report on the financial statements
We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of International Breweries Plc, for
the period ended 31 December, 2017,
which comprise the statement of financial
position, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity,
statement of cash flows for the period then
ended and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of significant
accounting policies.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give
a true and fair view of the company’s
financial position as at 31 December, 2017,
its financial performance and cash flows for
the year ended on that date in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting
Standards, the Companies and Allied
Matters Act, CAP C20 LFN, 2004 and the
Financial Reporting Council Act 2011.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
the International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs) issued by the International Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB), We
are independent of the company in
accordance with ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

an independent member of

BAKER TILLY
INTERNATIONAL

Directors' responsibility for the financial
statements
The Directors are responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ,
and with the requirements of the Companies
and Allied Matters Acts, CAP C20 LFN, 2004
and the Financial Reporting Council Act
2011. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material
misstatements, selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies, and
making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an
independent opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of
the risks of material

Zion House, 46 Alaafin Avenue
Oluyole Industrial Estate
P. O. Box 36808
Ibadan, Nigeria
Tel: +234 (0) 8111474671
+234 (0) 8131826784
E-mail: btnib@bakertillynigeria.com
Website: www.bakertillynigeria.com
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misstatement of the financial statements. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the
period under review. Key audit mattes are
selected from the matters communicated with
management, but are not intended to represent
all matters that were discussed with them. These
matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our option thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
As stated in note 19 no actuarial valuation was
undertaken to ascertain the precise liabilities on
staff gratuities.
Report on other legal requirements
The Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20
LFN, 2004 requires that in carrying out our audit
we consider and report to you on the following
matters. We confirm that:

an independent member of

BAKER TILLY
INTERNATIONAL

I.

We have obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit.

ii.

In our opinion, proper books of account have
been kept by the company; and

iii. The company's statement of financial
position and statement of comprehensive
income are in agreement with the books of
accounts.

IBADAN, Nigeria
20 March, 2018

AUDITOR’S REPORT

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS (CONT’D)
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PROFILE & LOSS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE NINE MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2017

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other income
Marketing and promotion expenses
Administrative expenses
Results from operating activities
Finance income
Finance cost
(Loss)/Profit before tax
Company income tax expense
Deferred tax
Profit after tax for the period
Total comprehensive income:
Total comprehensive income for the period
Earnings per share (basic)
Earnings per share (diluted)

9 Months ended
December
2017

12 Months ended
March
2017

N '000
36,527,807
(22,819,920)
13,707,887
7
123,387
8
(6,086,719)
9
(4,549,768)
10
3,194,787
10(d)
532,971
10(e)
(6,927,374)
(3,199,616)
21(a)
(129,884)
14, 21(a), 22
4,758,820
1,429,320
=======

N'000
32,711,218
(17,546,759)
15,164,459
102,403
(5,089,755)
(2,092,682)
8,084,425
2,983
(5,195,659)
2,891,749
(1,693,181)
(164,211)
1,034,357
=======

1,429,320
======
17 kobo
17 kobo

1,034,357
=======
31 kobo
12 kobo

Note
5
6

The notes on pages 36 to 62 including the statement of accounting policies on pages 37 to 48 form part of these financial statements.

INTERNATIONAL BREWERIES PLC // 2017 ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible asset
Other receivables
Deferred tax assets

Note
12
13
16(g)
14

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

15
16
17

Total assets
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Employee Benefits
Other payables
Deferred tax liabilities

20(c)
19(b)
18(c)
22

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Employee Benefits
Borrowings
Current tax liabilities

18(a)
19(a)
20(a)
21(c)

Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Total shareholders' equity
Other reserves
Total equity

23
24
25
26

9 Months ended
December
2017
N '000

12 Months ended
March
2017
N '000

191,554,980
432,592
1,481,590
20,298,380
213,767,542
----------------16,204,786
15,750,190
8,098,186
40,053,162
----------------253,820,704
----------------

31,748,068
45,738
1,229,680
33,023,486
---------------3,835,324
6,938,722
1,165,203
11,939,249
----------------44,962,735
--------------

18,170,989
793,826
147,489
24,453,739
43,566,043
-------------94,828,183
544,620
69,871,674
2,634,192
167,878,669
--------------211,444,712
--------------42,375,992
=======

509,803
136,522
4,385,556
5,031,881
-------------12,476,472
165,438
11,987,582
1,422,602
26,052,094
-------------31,083,975
-------------13,878,760
=======

4,297,931
6,160,731
30,556,574
41,015,236
1,360,756
42,375,992
=======

1,647,125
6,160,731
4,710,148
12,518,004
1,360,756
13,878,760
=======

Approved by the Board of Directors on 19 March, 2018 and signed on its behalf according to Law by:

Akintoye Omole
Chairman
FRC/2017/IODN/00000016560

Annabelle Degroot
Managing Director
FRC/2017/IODN/00000018097

Olugbenga Adebajo
Country Finance Manager
FRC/2014/ICAN/006878

The notes on pages 36 to 62 including the statement of accounting policies on pages 37 to 48 form part of these financial statements.

FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2017
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CHANGES IN EQUITTY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2017
Share

Share

Other

Retained

Total

capital

premium

Reserves

Earnings

Equity

N '000

N '000

N '000

N '000

N '000

1,647,125

6,160,731

1,360,756

4,710,148

13,878,760

-

-

-

29,330,038

29,330,038

New share issue

2,650,806

-

-

(2,650,806)

-

As at November 13, 2017

4,297,931

6,160,731

1,360,756

31,389,380

43,208,798

Adjustment on container amortization

-

-

-

(1,180,420)

(1,180,420)

Pre-merger tax provisions

-

-

-

(1,081,705)

(1,081,705)

Profit for the year

-

-

-

1,429,319

1,429,319

4,297,931

6,160,731

1,360,756

30,556,574

42,375,992

=======

=======

======== =========

========

Equity as at 1 April, 2017
Post-merger adjustments:
Adjustments on consolidation

Total comprehensive income:

Equity as at 31 December, 2017
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Share

Share

Other

Retained

Total

capital

premium

Reserves

Earnings

Equity

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

1,647,125

6,160,731

1,360,756

4,828,779

13,997,391

Dividends paid

-

-

-

(1,152,988)

(1,152,988)

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

-

1,034,357

1,034,357

1,647,125

6,160,731

1,360,756

4,710,148

13,878,760

======

=======

=======

========

========

Equity as at 1 April, 2016

Equity as at 31 March, 2017

CHANGES IN EQUITTY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT 31 MARCH, 2017

34

INTERNATIONAL BREWERIES PLC // 2017 ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flow from operating activities before changes
in working capital
Changes in working capital
Cash generated from operations
VAT paid
Back duty on VAT and penalty paid
Income tax paid
Gratuity paid
Net cash flow from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of Property plant and equipment
Post-merger asset acquisitions
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds on sale of Property plant and equipment
Interest income
Net cash flow applied to investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities:
Dividends paid
Increase in bank loan & overdraft
Interest paid
Net cash flow from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalent at end of period

9 Months ended
December
2017
N'000

12 Months ended
March
2017
N'000

50,320,642
61,326,173
111,646,815
(1,613,250)
(12,764)
110,020,801
-----------------

10,092,553
3,621,175
13,713,728
(1,346,726)
(70,085)
(877,446)
(16,015)
11,403,456
----------------

(43,217,674)
(129,634,553)
(396,714)
500,445
532,971
(172,215,525)
-------------------

(8,510,038)
80,230
2,983
(8,426,825)
-----------------

76,055,081
(6,927,374)
69,127,707
---------------6,932,983
1,165,203
8,098,186
======

(1,152,988)
3,435,161
(5,195,659)
(2,913,486)
---------------63,145
1,102,058
1,165,203
======

Note
27(a)
27(b)

21(c)
19(c)

12
13

20
10(e)

17

The notes on pages 36 to 62 including the statement of accounting policies on pages 36 to 48 form part of these financial
statements.
The reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents is as shown in note 17
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIALS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2017
1.

Corporate information
International Breweries Plc was incorporated as a private limited liability company in Nigeria on 22 December, 1971, commenced
business operations in August, 1978 and became a public limited liability company on 26 April, 1994 and listed on the Nigeria
Stock Exchange. The principal activities of the company continue to be brewing, packaging and marketing of beer, alcoholic
flavoured/ non-alcoholic beverages and soft drinks.
Acquisition
In August through to November 12, 2017, ABInBev acquired 72.17% of SABMiller shares in International Breweries Plc in a series
of transactions which resulted in ABInBev acquiring controlling interests in the company. On November 13, 2017, a merger
arrangement was consummated between International Breweries Plc and two other entities namely, Intafact Beverages Limited and
Pabod Breweries Limited all controlled by AB Inbev.
The predecessor value method of accounting for the merger was adopted as the three companies are under common control and
the control is not transitory as enunciated in IFRS 3 which scopes out of its purview, business combinations by such companies
under common control. The scheme of merger clearly states that the merged entities are categorized as business combinations
under common control (BCUCC). The identified basis for categorizing the merged entities as under common control includes:
The merged entities are ultimately controlled by ABInBev
The common control is not transitory,
Consequent upon the merger, ABInBev possesses the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the merged
entities for the purposes of obtaining benefits from the Company's activities.
The extent of non controlling interest in each of the merged entities, both before and after the business combination is
not significant as to determine whether the combination involves entities under common control.
Under the predecessor value method adopted, goodwill is not recognised on acquisition. The net tangible and intangible assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition of Pabod Breweries Limited and Intafact Beverages Limited was deemed to be
the purchase price on the acquisition date and presented in the common control reserve transferred to retained earnings on
consolidation. As at 31 December 2017, the Company incurred a total sum of N897million on acquisition related costs, consisting
mainly of filing fees and professional services fees. These amounts have been reflected in the respective expense accounts in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The purchase transaction accounted for under the predecessor values method of accounting which requires, among other items,
that assets and liabilities assumed be recognized in the combined statement of financial position at the previous carrying value as of
the acquisition date. Therefore, the combined statement of financial position for the period after the acquisition includes the
following price allocation based on the previous financial costs.

Assets
Property, plant and equipment (carrying amount)
Other non-current assets
Current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Long term debts
Other non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Total liabilities

Intafact
N'000
107,168,100
6,094,256
14,789,763

Pabod
N'000
46,807,812
206,598
13,483,731

Total
N'000
153,975,912
6,300,854
28,273,494

128,052,119

60,498,141

188,550,260

18,170,989
10,759,708
70,898,562
99,829,259

5,039
63,358,833
63,363,872

18,170,989
10,764,747
134,257,395
163,193,131
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Total purchase price

28,222,860
(2,865,731)
25,357,129
=======
=======
=======
The Company intends to retain its trade name which represents a respected brand with positive customer loyalty.
2.

Statement of compliance
The financial statements are prepared in compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
with the Interpretations issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as adopted by
the Federal Republic of Nigeria.

3.

Significant Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of the company's financial statements are set out below.
a) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
Unless otherwise stated, the accounts have been prepared
on an accruals basis and under the historical cost
convention. These financial statements are presented in
Nigerian Naira (N), which is the company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in Naira has
been rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise
stated.
The accompanying financial statements as at 31 December,
2017 and for the period from 01 April to 31 December,
2017 include the accounts of the company and the merged
entities as of the date of the merger 13 November, 2017.
The combined results of the merged entities for the period
from 13 November, 2017 with those of the surviving
company for the period from April 1, 2017.

The accompanying post-merger financial statements have
been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) and include
the accounts of the Company together with those of the
merged entities. All significant intercompany transactions
and accounts have been eliminated. Also, these financial
statements reflect all consolidation adjustments which are
necessary for fair presentation of the financial position and
results of operations for the periods presented in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).
To align the reporting period of the merged entities with that
of ABInBev, a change in accounting date was necessitated
and as a result, the company has prepared the financial
statements for nine months from 01 April to 31 December,
2017.
b)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Financial Statements requires
Management to exercise judgement and to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies,
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and disclosures. These estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

NOTES TO THE FINANCIALS
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Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017)

affects both current and future periods.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIALS

The company revised the measurement basis for the
amortization of containers and the provision of doubtful
debts during the finacial period under review. The
amortization of containers in the current period has been
based on the full cost of the containers without taking
cognisance of customers' deposit. Also, the doubtful debts
provision have been extended to specific debts outstanding
90 days and above in the current year as against the general
provision made in the previous year.
In accordance with IAS 8 on the change in accounting
estimates, the adjustments in these estimates applied are
made prospectively Hence, the full estimates are recognized
in the financial statements for the current period.
c)



Unrealised losses on a debt instrument measured at fair
value for which the tax base remains at cost give rise to a
deductible temporary difference, irrespective of whether the
debt instrument's holder expects to recover the carrying
amount of the debt instrument by sale or by use, or whether
it is probable that the issuer will pay all the contractual cash
flows;

2.

When an entity assesses whether taxable profits will be
available against which it can utilise a deductible temporary
difference, and the tax law restricts the utilisation of losses
to deduction against income of a specific type (e.g. capital
losses can only be set off against capital gains), an entity
assesses a deductible temporary difference in combination
with other deductible temporary differences of that type, but
separately from other types of deductible temporary
differences;

3.

The estimate of probable future taxable profit may include
the recovery of some of an entity's assets for more than their
carrying amount if there is sufficient evidence that it is
probable that the entity will achieve this; and

4.

In evaluating whether sufficient future taxable profits are
available, an entity should compare the deductible
temporary differences with future taxable profits excluding
tax deductions resulting from the reversal of those
deductible temporary differences.

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

The following amendments to IFRSs became mandatorily
effective in the current period. The amendments generally
require full retrospective application (i.e. comparative
amounts have to be restated), with some amendments
requiring prospective application.



1.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative;
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses; and
Amendments to IFRS 12 included in Annual
improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle.
Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017)
The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and none cash changes.
The amendments apply prospectively. Entities are not
required to present comparative information for earlier
periods when they first apply the amendments.

The amendments apply retrospectively.
Amendments to lFRS 12 included in the 2014 -2016
Annual improvements Cycle
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017)
The 2014-2016 Annual Improvements Cycle includes
amendments to a number of lFRSs, one of which is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
See section 18 below for a summary of the other
amendments included in this package that are not yet
effective.

Standard

Subject of amendment

Details

IFRS 12

Clarification of the scope

IFRS 12 states that an entity need not provide summarised of the
Standard financial information for interests in subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures that are classified (or included in a disposal group that is
classified) as held for sale.
The amendments clarify that this is the only concession from the
disclosure requirements of IFRS 12 for such interests. The amendments
apply retrospectively,

d)

New and revised IFRSs that are not mandatorily
effective (but allow early application) for the year
ending 31 December 2017

In July 2014, the IASB finalised the reform of financial
instruments accounting and issued IFRS 9 (as revised in
2014), which contains the requirements for

Below is a list of new and revised IFRSs that are not yet
mandatorily effective (but allow early application) for the
year ending 31 December 2017:
-

IFRS 9: Financial instruments;

-

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the
related Clarifications;

-

IFRS 16: Leases;

-

Amendments to IFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of
Share based Payment Transactions;

-

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or joint
Venture;

-

Amendments to IAS 40: Transfers of investment Property;

-

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle;
and

-

IFRS 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration.
The IASB has also issued Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts', which is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018; however, it is not applicable to
International Breweries Plc as the company does not issue
any insurance contracts.
IFRS 9 Financial instruments (as revised in 2014)
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018)

39

(a) the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities,
(b) impairment methodology, and
(c) general hedge accounting.
IFRS 9 (as revised in 2014) will supersede IAS 39: Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement upon its
effective date,
Phase 1: Classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities
With respect to the classification and measurement, the
number of categories of financial assets under IFRS 9 has
been reduced; all recognised financial assets that are
currently within the scope of IAS 39 will be subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value under IFRS
9. Specifically:


a debt instrument that (i) is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows and
(ii) has contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
must be measured at amortised cost (net of any write down
for impairment), unless the asset is designated at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) under the fair value option.



a debt instrument that (i) is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and (ii) has
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, must be measured at
FVTOCI, unless the asset is designated at FVTPL under the
fair value option.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIALS
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all other debt instruments must be measured at FVTPL.



all equity investments are to be measured in the statement
of financial position at fair value, with gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss except that if an equity
investment is not held for trading, nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 applies, an irrevocable election
can be made at initial recognition to measure the
investment at FVTOCI, with dividend income recognised in
profit or loss.
lFRS 9 also contains requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and derecognition
requirements. One major change from IAS 39 relates to the
presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial
liability designated as at FVTPL attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability. Under IFRS 9, such changes are
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
presentation of the effect of the change in the liability's
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, Under lAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as FVTPL is presented in profit
or loss.
Phase 2: Impairment of financial assets

financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principle of an ―economic relationship'.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is no
longer required. Far more disclosure requirements about an
entity's risk management activities have been introduced.
The work on macro hedging by the IASB is still at a
preliminary stage — a discussion paper was issued in April
2014 to gather preliminary views and direction from
constituents with a comment period which ended in October
2014. The project is still under analysis at the time of
writing.
Transitional provisions
IFRS 9 (as revised in 2014) is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application
permitted.
If an entity elects to apply IFRS 9 early, it must apply all of the
requirements in IFRS 9 at the same time, except for those
relating to:
1

the presentation of fair value gains and losses attributable to
changes in the credit risk of financial liabilities designated as
at FVTPL, the requirements for which an entity may early
apply without applying the other requirements in IFRS 9; and

2

hedge accounting, for which an entity may choose to
continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements of IAS
39 instead of the requirements of IFRS 9.

The impairment model under IFRS 9 reflects expected credit
losses, as opposed to incurred credit losses under IAS 39.
Under the impairment approach in IFRS 9, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised, Instead, an entity always accounts for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses. The amount of expected credit losses should be
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

IFRS 9 contains specific transitional provisions for (i)
classification and measurement of financial assets; (ii)
impairment of financial assets; and (iii) hedge accounting.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018)
IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. It will supersede the following
revenue Standards and Interpretations upon its effective
date:

Phase 3: Hedge accounting
The general hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms in lAS 39.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types
of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify as hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-




IAS 18 Revenue,"
IAS 11 Construction Contracts;






IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes;
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate;
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers; and
SIC 31 Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services.
As suggested by the title of the new Revenue Standard, IFRS
15 will only cover revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15, a customer of an entity is a party
that has contracted with the entity to obtain goods or
services that are an output of the entity's ordinary activities
in exchange for consideration. Unlike the scope of IAS 18,
the recognition and measurement of interest income and
dividend income from debt and equity investments are no
longer within the scope of IFRS 15. Instead, they are within
the scope of lAS 39 (or IFRS 9 if it is early adopted).
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contingency arrangements. The new Standard introduces a
high hurdle for variable consideration to be recognised as
revenue — that is, only to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
When costs incurred to obtain a contract and costs to fulfil a
contract can be recognised as an asset.
e) i) Property, Plant and Equipment:
The company uses the cost model for property, plant and
equipment. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less
depreciation and impairments.
Cost includes:

As mentioned above, the new Revenue Standard has a
single model to deal with revenue from contracts with
customers. Its core principle is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.
-

-

Whether or not a contract (or a combination of contracts)
contains more than one promised good or service, and if so,
when and how the promised goods or services should be
unbundled.
Whether the transaction price allocated to each
performance obligation should be recognised as revenue
over time or at a point in time,
Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied, which is when 'control' of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Unlike IAS 18, the
new Standard does not include separate guidance for 'sales
of goods' and ‘provision of services'; rather, the new
Standard requires entities to assess whether revenue
should be recognised over time or a particular point in time
regardless of whether revenue relates to ‘sales of goods' or
'provision of services’,
When the transaction price includes a variable consideration
element, how it will affect the amount and timing of revenue
to be recognised. The concept of variable consideration is
broad; a transaction price is considered variable due to
discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions,
incentives, performance bonuses, penalties and



The purchase price, including import duties, and nonrefundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts
and rebates;



Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management including
costs associated with site preparation;



Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
over the period up to the time such an asset is substantially
ready for its intended use.
On adoption of IFRS, the company used ‘revaluation as
deemed cost’ at the date of transition in respect to certain
buildings.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
ii)

Depreciation:

No depreciation is provided on freehold land and assets in
the process of construction. Depreciation on property, plant
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and equipment is calculated on the straight line basis to
write off the costs of components that have homogenous
useful lives to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
Buildings
22- 55 years
Computer equipment 5- 10 years
Plant and machinery
5- 50 years
Vehicles
8 – 10 years
Marketing vehicles
4 – 8 years
Furniture and fittings
5 – 30 years
The company regularly reviews all of its depreciation rates
and residual values. Such a review takes into consideration
changes in circumstances including expected market
requirements for the equipment, rate of expected usage and
variation in the expected rate of technological
developments.
Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount, it is written down to its
estimated recoverable amount. As at the balance sheet
date, there was no indication of impairment of the property
plant and equipment and no adverse condition that could
impact on the useful lives of such assets was detected.

the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, the associated costs can be
estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management
involvement with the PPE.
f)

Intangible assets

Purchased software is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation on a straight – line basis (if applicable) and
impairment losses. Cost is usually determined by the
amount paid by the company, unless the asset has been
acquired as part of a business combination.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their
estimated useful economic lives, and only tested for
impairment where there is a triggering event. Amortisation is
included within the net operating expenses in the income
statement.
g)

Leases

Assets acquired under finance lease are capitalised and
depreciated in accordance with the company's policy on
property, plant and equipment unless the lease term is
shorter whereupon, they are amortised over the lease term.

Returnable containers
Returnable Containers are reflected at cost. Provisions are
made for breakages and losses in trade to write off the cost
over the expected useful life of the container. This period is
shortened where appropriate by reference to market
dynamics.
The total landed cost of new bottles and crates are also
recognised in Returnable Containers. Amortisation of
containers is calculated on a straight line basis over the
expected useful lives from the date that available for use. It
is calculated to reflect the estimated pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset and
recognised in the income statement at the following rates:
Bottles
5 years
Crates
7 years
iii) Gains and losses on sale
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by reference
to the proceeds on disposal and carrying amounts of the
assets and are dealt with in the income statement. Net gains
and losses are presented as other operating income and
expenses when recovery of the consideration is probable,

The associated obligations are included under financial
liabilities.
h)

Impairment

The carrying amounts of financial assets, property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment in accordance with IAS 36:9. If any
such indication exists, an asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or the related cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognized in the income statement.
Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is determined as the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
an asset that does not generate largely independent cash
inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
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i)

Revenue

(I). Sale of goods and services
Revenue from the sale of products in the ordinary course of
business is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of VAT, excise duties, returns,
customer discounts and other sales-related discounts.
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised in profit or
loss when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is
probable, the associated costs and possible return of
products can be estimated reliably, and there is no
continuing management involvement with the products. The
methodology and assumptions used to estimate rebates
and returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in the light
of contractual and legal obligations, historical trends, past
experience and projected market conditions. Market
conditions are evaluated using wholesaler and other thirdparty analyses, market research data and internally
generated information. Turnover also includes co-packaging
income derived from the use of the company's facilities for
the production of products of other companies under a copackaging arrangement. The same recognition criteria also
apply to the sale of by-products and waste (such as spent
grains) with exception that this is included within other
income.
(II). Other income
Other income constitutes gains from the sale of assets, net
of taxes; proceeds from the sale of by-products; interest on
deposits and others. These various sources of income are
recognised in profit or loss when ownership has been
transferred to the buyer.
Rentals paid and incentives received on leased sales trucks
are charged or credited to the income statement on a
straight - line basis over the lease term.

j)

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised in respect of goods and services
received when supplied in accordance with contractual
terms. Provision is made when an obligation exists for a
future liability in respect of a past event and where the
amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.
Manufacturing start-up costs between validation and the
achievement of normal production are expensed as
incurred. Advertising and promotion expenses are charged
to the income statement as incurred. Distribution costs on
sales to customers are included in selling, general and
administrative expenses.
Minimum lease payments under finance leases are
apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated
to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Contingent lease payments are accounted for
by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining
term of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.
Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest
method.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net
basis in other net finance expenses.
k)

Income tax

Income tax on the profit for the year comprises current and
deferred taxes. Income tax is recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in equity, in which case the tax effect is
also recognized directly in equity.
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable profit
for the year, using the current tax rate in accordance with the
enacted tax statutes, at the date of the statement of
financial position, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.
In line with IAS 12 - income taxes, deferred taxes are
provided for using the liability method which focuses on
temporary differences. Temporary differences are
differences between the tax base of an asset or liability and
its carrying amount in the statement of financial position.
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current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Should circumstances or
events change and give rise to a reversal of a previous
impairment loss, the reversal is recognised in the income
statement in the period in which it occurs and the carrying
value of the asset is increased. The increase in the carrying
value of the asset will only be up to the amount that it would
have been had the original impairment not occurred.
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The company recognizes a deferred tax liability or asset
when there are taxable and deductible differences between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the balance sheet.
The company recognizes deferred tax assets arising from
unrelieved tax losses, tax credits and unabsorbed capital
allowances carried forward to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which
the deferred tax asset can be utilized in future.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

at fair value (plus any directly attributable transaction costs,
except in the case of those classified at fair value through
profit or loss). For those financial instruments that are not
subsequently held at fair value, the company assesses
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment at
each reporting date.
Financial assets are recognised when the company has
rights or other access to economic benefits. Such assets
consist of cash, equity instruments, a contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset, or a contractual right
to exchange financial instruments with another entity on
potentially favourable terms.
De-recognition of financial assets

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled.
l)

Accounting for leases

Leased property, plant and equipment where the company
assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position at an amount equal to the lower of fair
value of the leased property and the present value of
minimum lease payments at inception of the lease.
Amortisation and impairment testing for depreciable leased
assets, is the same as for own depreciable assets.
Lease payments are apportioned between the outstanding
liabilities and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.
Lease of assets under which all the risks and rewards of
ownership are substantially retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases.
Rentals paid and incentives received on operating leases are
charged or credited to the income statement over the lease
term.

Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive
cash flows from the asset has expired or has been
transferred or when the company has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial liabilities are recognised when there is an
obligation to transfer benefits and that obligation is a
contractual liability to deliver cash or another financial asset
or to exchange financial instruments with another entity on
potentially unfavourable terms.
De-recognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are
extinguished, that is discharged, cancelled or expired. If a
legally enforceable right exists to set off recognised amounts
of financial assets and liabilities, which are in determinable
monetary amounts, and there is the intention to settle net,
the relevant financial assets and liabilities are offset.
Interest costs are charged to the income statement in the
year in which they accrue. Premiums or discounts arising
from the difference between the net proceeds of financial
instruments purchased or issued and the amounts
receivable or repayable at maturity are included in the
effective interest calculation and taken to net finance costs
over the life of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities relevant to the
company for the year are as follows: -

m) Financial assets and financial liabilities

Loans and receivables

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recorded

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
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i) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for
impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the
company will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the terms of the receivables. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset's carrying value
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. This
provision is recognised in the income statement.
ii) Cash and cash equivalents
In the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, bank deposits repayable on demand
and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. It also
includes bank overdrafts which are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.
iii) Amounts owed by staff
These represent short term interest free salary advances to
members of staff.
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost include trade
payables, accruals, amounts owed to associates – trade,
other payables and borrowings.

i)

Trade payables

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method where applicable. Trade
payables are analysed between current and non-current
liabilities on the face of the statement of financial position,
depending on when the obligation to settle will be realised.
ii)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost and include accrued and prepaid interest. Borrowings
are classified as current liabilities unless the company has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 monthsfrom the reporting date. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities
and are included within cash and cash equivalents in the
statement of cash flow as they form an integral part of the
company's cash management.
n)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the period
are translated to the functional currency (Nigerian Naira) at
the exchange rate prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date.
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.
o)

Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect
method. Changes in balance sheet items that have not
resulted in cash flows such as translation differences, fair
value changes and other non-cash items have been
eliminated for the purpose of preparing this statement.
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders in periods that they
are available as well as interest paid on borrowings are
included in financing activities.
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with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on
an active market. They arise when the company provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivable. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities of greater than 12
months after the reporting date which are classified as noncurrent assets. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised at fair value including originating fees and
transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less provision
for impairment. Loans and receivables include trade
receivables, amounts owed by associates – trade, amounts
owed by staff, accrued income and cash and cash
equivalents.
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p)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Costs attributable to
the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction
from equity, net of any tax effects, from the proceeds.
q)

Reserves

similar items; based on weighted average cost formula.
(ii) Finished goods and Work in progress
Finished goods and work in progress are measured using
standard costs based on weighted average and include cost
of raw materials, direct costs and an appropriate portion of
production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Asset revaluation reserve
(iii) Goods in Transit
Surpluses or deficits arising on the revaluation of individual
fixed assets are credited or debited to a non-distributable
reserve known as fixed assets revaluation reserve.
Revaluation deficits in excess of the amount of prior
revaluation surpluses on the same assets are charged to
other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a previously re-valued asset, an amount
equal to the revaluation surplus attributable to that asset is
transferred from revaluation reserve to revenue reserve.
r)

Earnings per share

International Breweries Plc presents basic and diluted
earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for earlier
years.
s)

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost of inventories is determined using
weighted average cost method. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs of
disposal. The costs of inventories consist of purchase costs,
conversion costs and all other costs incurred in bringing
them to their present location and condition.
(i) Raw materials
Raw materials and other bought-in components are
measured using the purchase price, import duties,
transport, dock charges and other costs directly attributable
to its acquisition less trade discounts, rebates and other

Goods ordered, shipped and awaiting delivery are
recognised as goods in transit and are stated at the
purchase price plus other incidental costs incurred to date.
(iv) Spares, fuel and lubricants
The cost of spare parts, fuel and lubricants is based on
weighted average. Spare parts are valued at lower of cost
and net realizable value. Spare parts and servicing
equipment are usually carried as inventory and recognised in
profit or loss as consumed. However, major spare parts and
stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and
equipment when the company expects to use them during
more than one period but only at the point of issue. Similarly,
if the spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only
in connection with an item of property, plant and equipment,
they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
t)

Employee Benefits

International Breweries Plc recognises employee obligations
in line with IAS 19 by making certain assumptions in order to
value the company's gratuity and post-retirement
obligations in the statement of financial position and to
determine the amounts to be recognised in the income
statement.
i) Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on
an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
services are provided. International Breweries Plc
recognises wages, salaries, social security contributions,
bonuses and other allowances for current employees in the
income statement as the employees render such services.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
under short - term benefits if the company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay the amount as a result

of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.
ii) Defined contribution plans
In line with the provisions of the Nigerian Pension Reform Act
2004, International Breweries Plc has instituted a defined
contributory pension scheme for its employees. The scheme
is funded by fixed contributions from employees and the
company at the rate of 8% and 10% of remunerations
respectively and invested outside the company through
Pension Fund Administrators (PFAs) preferred by
employees.
The company has no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employees'
service in the current and prior periods.
The matching contributions made by the company to the
relevant PFAs are recognised as expenses when the costs
become payable in the reporting periods during which
employees have rendered services in exchange for those
contributions. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they become due.

The discount rate is the yield at balance sheet date on highquality rated corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of company's obligations. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method. Any actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement in the period in which they arise.
The company also recognises a liability and an expense for
long-term service awards where cash is paid to the
employee at certain milestone dates in a career with the
company. Such accruals are appropriately discounted to
reflect the future payment dates at discount rates
determined by reference to local high-quality corporate
bonds.
(Employee Compensation Act 2010)
IB Plc provides 1% of employees' gross annual salary as
disability/death in service insurance benefits under the
Employee Compensation Act 2010 (formerly Workmen
Compensation Act CAP W6 LFN, 2004). The charge
represents the company's obligations under the scheme.
The charge so recognised is expensed in the income
statement of the year of incidence.
u)

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
iii) Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan
including pension plan that does not qualify as a defined
contribution plan. The company makes unfunded provision
for retirement benefit entitlements due to staff upon
disengagement based on their years of service and current
emoluments as contained in the staff conditions of service.
No other post employment benefit arrangement exists
between the company and the current or past employees.
iv) Other long term employee benefits
The company's obligation in respect of long term employee
benefits, other than pension plans, is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value
of any related assets is deducted.
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Deposits by customers

Returnable containers in circulation are recorded within
property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability
is recorded in respect of the obligation to repay the
customers' deposits. Deposits paid by customers for
branded returnable containers are reflected in the balance
sheet within current liabilities.
v)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

i) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation,
whether legal or constructive, as a result of a past event for
which it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such
provisions are calculated on a discounted basis where the
effect is material to the original undiscounted provision. The
company reviews provisions existing at the end of each
reporting period and makes appropriate adjustment to
reflect the current best estimate.
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If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed.

the change in probability occurs except in the extremely rare
circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.
iii) Contingent assets

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses;
however, provisions are recognised for onerous contracts
where the unavoidable cost exceeds the expected benefit.

Contingent assets arising from unplanned or other
unexpected events giving rise to the possibility of an inflow of
economic benefits are disclosed in the financial statements.
Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that
developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow
of economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related
income are recognised in the financial statements of the
period in which the change occurs. If an inflow of economic
benefits has become probable, an entity discloses the
contingent asset.

ii) Contingent liability
A contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. Where the company is jointly and severally liable for
an obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability. The
entity recognises a provision for the part of the obligation for
which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is probable, except in the extremely rare circumstances
where no reliable estimate can be made. Contingent
liabilities are assessed continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of
future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the financial statements of the period in which

Net revenue from Nigeria
5.

4.

Segment reporting
No business or geographical segment information is
reported as the Company's primary geographical segment is
Nigeria. Presently, 100 percent of the Company's sales are
made in Nigeria. Also, identical risks and returns apply to all
Company products. Net revenue for the reporting year was
as follows:
December
2017
N'000
36,527,807
========

March
2017
N'000
32,711,218
========

36,527,807
========

32,711,218
=========

Total Revenue
(a) Net Revenue (note 3 j)

Revenue is wholly derived from Nigeria in respect of the sale of beer and other alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages.
6.

Cost of sales
Cost of goods sold comprises raw materials,
conversion cost and materials sourcing expenses.
Materials consumed and allocated overheads
Salaries, wages and allowances (production staff)
Technical management fees
Royalties
Depreciation - plant machinery
Amortisation of containers

December
2017
N'000
19,034,878
554,772
717,224
1,052,763
1,460,282
22,819,920
=======

March
2017
N'000
14,280,588
1,005,086
654,224
11,452
907,098
688,311
17,546,759
=======
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December
2017
N'000
6,298
117,089
123,387
=====

March
2017
N'000
93,345
678
8,380
102,403
=====

7.

Other Income
Royalty received
Profit on sale of PPE
Sale of scrap
Foreign exchange gain
Others

8.

Marketing, promotion and distribution expenses
Transportation and distribution
Salaries, wages and allowances (S&D staff)
Advertising and promotion

N'000
3,271,726
896,516
1,918,476
6,086,719
======

N'000
2,882,520
681,174
1,526,061
5,089,755
======

9.

Administrative expenses

December
2017
N'000
1,127,243
40,741
100,581
139,108
28,838
75,075
6,959
1,130,244
419,372
1,344,128
137,478
4,549,768
======

March
2017
N'000
443,298
179,662
78,266
100,958
23,780
163,608
36,046
170,900
588,244
307,920
2,092,682
======

December
2017
N'000
2,650,521
9,700
14,239
24,372

March
2017
N'000
1,903,328
9,600
25,643
21,618

December
2017
N'000

March
2017
N'000

23,939
7,771
7,854
====

27,182
3,990
12,004
====

Salaries, wages and allowances (admin staff)
Contribution to Pension
Staff recruitment and training expenses
Staff retirement benefits
Auditor's remuneration
Corporate social responsibilities & donations
Loss on asset disposal
Bad and doubtful debts
Other staff related costs
Business running Costs
Depreciation

10. Results from operating activities
(a) This is arrived at after charging –

Depreciation/amortisation of PPE & intangible assets
Directors' emoluments - Fees
- allowances
Audit fee

(b) Emolument of directors –
Emoluments of directors who discharged their
Duties wholly or mainly in Nigeria
The Chairman's emolument totalled
The highest paid director's emoluments totalled
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December
2017

March
2017

Number
3
3
6
==

Number
3
3
===

532,971
=====

2,983
====

December
2017
4,436,724
46,305
2,030,962
6,513,991
413,384
6,927,374
======

March
2017
784,624
102,181
454,599
1,341,403
3,854,256
5,195,659
======

Number

Number

126
619
703
1,448
====

41
216
299
556
===
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(c) The Directors received emoluments in
range of N3.1 million to N12.1 million as follows:
Less than N1 million
N1 million - N 5 million
N5.1 million and above

(d) Finance income
Interest on bank borrowings and intergroup loans

(e)

Finance expense

Interest expense on bank borrowings and overdraft
Interest expense on finance guarantees and amortisation
Facility fees and other interests
Realised exchange losses on financing
Unrealized net exchange losses on financing

11.

Employee benefit

(a)

The average number of persons employed (excluding
directors) was as follows: Management staff
Senior staff
Junior staff

Number
(b)

The number of employees in receipt of emolument
0 - N1,500,000
N1,500,000 - N3,000,000
N3,000,000- N4,500,000
N4,500,000 – above

Number

11
585
668
184
1,448
====

10
342
135
69
556
===

N'000
2,747,003
161,932
2,908,935
======

N'000
2,129,558
179,662
2,309,220
=======

(c)The aggregate payroll costs of the employees amounted to Wages and salaries including staff bonus
Contributions to pension scheme
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Property, Plant and Equipment
Property Plant and Equipment movements in December, 2017

Gross value:
Cost/valuation at
01/04/2017
Post-merger transfers
At 12 November, 2017
Additions
Reclassifications
Impairment
Disposals
At 31/12/2017
Depreciation:

At 01/04/2017
On post-merger transfers
At 12 November, 2017
For the period
Impairment
Disposals
At 31/12/2017
Net book value:

At 31/12/2017
At 31/03/2017

Land and
buildings
N'000

Plant and
machinery
N'000

Vehicles,
furniture &
equipment
N'000

Returnable
containers
N'000

Assets in course
of construction
N'000

Total
N'000

3,446,302
13,528,986
16,975,288
212,001
9,444,800
26,632,088
----------------

21,444,687
36,790,080
58,234,767
1,088,660
23,281,290
(384)
82,604,333
----------------

1,432,152
6,777,489
8,209,641
358,064
1,497,273
(35,241)
10,029,737
----------------

9,271,793
24,505,151
33,776,944
9,886,870
1,218,387
(689,792)
44,192,410
----------------

4,975,194
64,012,455
68,987,649
31,672,078
(35,441,750)
65,217,978
----------------

40,570,128
145,614,161
186,184,289
43,217,674
(725,417)
228,676,546
------------------

277,905
1,197,279
1,475,184
132,395
1,607,578
---------------

5,267,380
6,269,003
11,536,383
1,433,854
(240)
12,969,996
----------------

602,002
3,242,035
3,844,037
412,963
(23,541)
4,233,458
--------------

2,674,773
5,271,291
7,946,064
10,558,701
(194,232)
18,310,536
----------------

----------------

8,822,060
15,979,608
24,801,668
1,979,211
10,558,701
(218,013)
37,121,568
----------------

25,024,511
=======
3,168,397
=======

69,634,337
=======
16,177,307
=======

5,796,280 25,881,875
====== =======
830,150
6,597,020
======
======

65,217,978
=======
4,975,194
=======

191,554,980
=======
31,748,068
=======
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Property Plant and Equipment movements in March 2017

Land and
buildings
N'000

Plant and
machinery
N'000

furniture &
equipment
N'000

Vehicles,
Returnable
containers
N'000

Assets in course
of construction
N'000

Total
N'000

2,802,616
643,686
-

17,218,124
(9,385)

1,136,703
4,235,948
(217,405)

6,063,314
3,221,388
512,854
(12,909)
-

5,079,032
5,288,650
(5,392,488)
-

32,299,789
8,510,038
(12,909)
(226,790)

At 31/03/2017
Depreciation:

3,446,302
---------------

21,444,687
-------------

1,432,152
------------

9,271,793
------------

4,975,194
------------

40,570,128
-------------

At 01/04/2016
For the year
Impairment
Disposals

220,637
57,268
-

4,294,269
978,711
(5,600)

573,786
169,853
(141,637)

1,994,853
688,311
(8,391)
-

-

7,083,545
1,894,143
(8,391)
(147,237)

At 31/03/2017
Net book value:

277,905
------------

5,267,380
------------

602,002
------------

2,674,773
--------------

--------------

8,822,060
------------

At 31/03/2017

3,168,397
======
2,581,979
======

16,177,307
=======
12,923,855
=======

830,150
======
562,917
======

6,597,020
======
4,068,461
======

4,975,194
======
5,079,032
======

31,748,068
=======
25,216,244
=======

Gross value:
Cost/valuation at
01/04/2016
Additions
Reclassifications
Impairment
Disposals

At 31/03/2016
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(b )

During the period, the company incurred capital expenditure on projects that were under construction as at balance sheet
date. The cost of property plant and Equipment under construction, development or processing as at the balance sheet
date was N31.660 billion (March 2017:N4975billion).

13.

Intangible asset

Computer software
Balance at 1 April
Addition
As at 31 December, 2017
Amortization and impairment loss:
Balance at 1 April
Amortization for the year
As at 31 December, 2017
Carrying amount:
As at 31 December, 2017
14.

March
2017
N'000
83,779
-

480,493
=====

83,779
====

28,856
19,046
47,901
====

28,856
9,185
38,041
====

432,592
=====

45,738
=====

December
2017
N'000
152,941

March
2017
N'000
127,458

1,171,991
17,090,413
1,243,425
565,090
74,520
20,298,380
=======

1,076,739
25,483
1,229,680
======

N'000
7,026,464
2,764,866
1,066,096
91,033
2,492,415
2,763,912

N'000
2,050,725
1,114,753
397,167
272,679

16,204,786
=======

3,835,324
======

Deferred tax assets

The amount of deferred tax assets by type is as follows:
Employee benefits b/forward
Deferred tax assets in the year:
Bad and doubtful debt
Unutilized capital allowances
Unutilized tax losses
Unrealised exchange loss
Employee benefits

15.

December
2017
N'000
83,779
396,714

Inventories
Raw materials
Spare parts, fuel and lubricants
Production in progress
Consumables
Goods –in –transit
Finished products
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16. Trade and other receivables

(a)

(b)

Current trade and other receivables
Trade receivables
Deposit for supplies
Amount due from associated companies
Other receivables
Staff receivables
Prepayments - Others

16(c )
16(b)
28

December
2017
N'000
11,529,026
1,663,642
623,403
221,383
23,739
1,688,996
15,750,190
=======

March
2017
N'000
3,164,113
3,165,236
78,041
98,868
432,464
6,938,722
======

Deposit for supplies
Deposit for supplies represent Naira deposits for foreign currencies purchased for funding of letters of credit as well as
deposits made for related domestic supplies of raw materials, machinery and spare parts.

Trade receivables
(c) Due from customers
Allowances for impairment

(d)

March
2017
N'000

15,071,383
(3,542,357)
11,529,026
=======

3,276,328
(112,215)
3,164,113
======

Age analysis of trade receivables

Aged current
1 to 30 days
30 to 60 days
60 to 90 days
90 to 180 days
Over 180 days

(e)

December
2017
N'000

----------December 2017------Gross Amt.
Allow'ce
Net Amt.
N'000
N'000
N'000
7,388,782
- 7,388,782
2,542,992
- 2,542,992
1,511,742
- 1,511,742
655,759
(570,249)
85,510
465,438
(465,438)
2,506,670
(2,506,670)
15,071,383
(3,542,357) 11,529,026
======= ======= ========

----------March 2017-----------Gross Amt. Allow'ce Net Amt.
N'000
N'000
N'000
1,750,300
1,750,300
339,981
339,981
151,422
151,422
80,154
80,154
63,292
63,292
891,179
(112,215)
778,964
3,276,328
(112,215)
3,164,113
======
======
======

The management of the company has credit policies in place to monitor the exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis. Under the
credit policies, all customers requiring credit over a certain amount are reviewed and prospective credit customers analysed
individually for creditworthiness before the company's payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Credit limits are
established for qualifying customers and these limits are regularly reviewed. Customers that fail to meet the company's
creditworthiness standards are allowed to transact business with the company only on cash basis.
The estimates of deductible allowances for incurred losses on impairment in respect of trade and other receivables are
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established by the company. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to i n d i v i d u a l l y
significant exposures and customers withoutstanding amounts but who have not placed orders for a period of one year or more.
The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics.
In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit mappings, including whether they are
individual or corporate entities, whether they are key distributors or retail distributors and the verification of the existence of
previous financial difficulties.
(f)

Impairment provision movement analysis - Trade debtors

Balance as at 01/04/17
Post-merger provisions acquired
Write-off during the year
Increase in allowances
Closing Balance
(g)

17.

Non-current receivables
Long term prepayments

December
2017
N'000
(112,215)
(1,617,851)
(1,730,066)
10,027
(1,720,040)
(1,822,318)
(3,542,357)
=======

March
2017
N'000
(76,373)
(76,373)
85
(76,288)
(35,927)
(112,215)
======

1,481,590
=======

======

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
The company classifies its cash on hand and in banks, and investments in short term liquid instruments as cash and cash
equivalents. Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is
reconciled to the related items in the balance sheet as follows:
December
March
2017
2017
N'000
N'000
Cash in hand
8,996
Cash in transit
Bank
8,089,190
1,165,203
8,098,186
1,165,203
=======
=======

18. Trade and other payables

(a)

Trade payables
Other payables
Customers' deposits
Due to related companies (Note 28)
Dividends payable
Accrued expenses

December
2017
N'000
39,358,862
2,146,230
3,159,025
44,349,369
5,814,697
94,828,183
=======

March
2017
N'000
2,722,201
928,348
602,012
6,963,207
753,558
507,146
12,476,472
======
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(b)
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Other payables

Other provisions
Excise duty payable
WHT and VAT payable

(c)

19.

Other Payables - Non-current
Unclaimed dividends

December
2017
1,053,562
368,361
724,307
2,146,230
=======

March
2017
928,348
928,348
======

147,489
======

136,522
======

N'000
544,620
======

N'000
165,438
======

793,826
======

509,803
=======

588,281
218,309
806,590

424,859
100,959
525,818

(12,764)
793,826
======

(16,015)
509,803
======

Employee benefits
(a) Current
Short term benefits accrued
(b) Non-Current
Staff gratuities
(c) Gratuities
Balance as at 1 April
Additional provisions during the year

Payments made during the year

International Breweries Plc operates contributory pension scheme under the Nigerian Pension Reform Act, 2014. Contributions
are through appointed Pension Fund Administrators that provide pension benefits for employees upon retirement.
Provision is made for gratuities due to staff upon disengagement based on their years of service and current emoluments as
contained in the staff conditions of service. No actuarial valuation had been under taken to ascertain the liabilities due on staff
gratuities.
20. Borrowings

(a)

Current
Bank overdrafts
Term Bank Loan
Financial guarantee maturing within 12 months

December
2017
N'000

March
2017
N'000

19,766,602
50,105,072
69,871,674
=======

4,025,350
7,944,300
17,932
11,987,582
=======
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In 2015, the company benefited from a United States Dollar denominated syndicated Bank loan facility with Stanbic IBTC the lead
banker, amounting to $62 million of which $25.2 million has been drawn at year end. The balance as at the yearend was $25.266
million. The facility accrued interest at a margin of 1.9% plus LIBOR. The loan is repayable had been extended by mutual
agreement to 5 February 2018.
On 11 September, 2017, there was a term loan facility agreement between the Intafact Beverages Limited (the borrower) and
Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV (the Guarantor) with the Standard Bank of Bank of South Africa Limited (the Original lender) and
Stanbic IBTC Capital Limited (the Arranger) for the sum of NGN10,500,000,000. The maturity date for the facility have been
obtained to be one year from the date of the financial close (i.e. the date upon which the Lender has confirmed to the obligors that
all of the conditions precedent to utilization, in which case, the borrower has received all of the documents and other evidences
required in form and substance satisfactory to the lender). The rate of interest on the facility for each interest period is the
percentage rate per annum of the aggregate of the margin and NIBOR

(b)

December
2017
N'000
69,871,674
=======

March
2017
N'000
11,987,582
=======

December
2017
N'000

March
2017
N'000

18,170,989
18,170,989
=======

=======

December
2017
N'000

March
2017
N'000

129,884
129,884
=======
9,029,984
(13,788,804)
(4,758,820)
(4,628,936)
=======

187,123
1,305,564
200,494
1,693,181
======
1,266,434
(1,102,223)
164,211
1,857,392
======

Borrowing Maturity
Due between 1 and 2 years

There were no facilities in default of scheduled repayments during the year.

(c)

Non Current
Term Bank Loan
Financial guarantee maturing after 12 months

There were no facilities in default of scheduled repayments during the year.
21. Taxation

(a)

Income tax expense in statement of comprehensive income
Education tax
Company income tax
Additional assessment for 2013 to 2015

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets
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The overdraft facilities from the various banks are all secured by corporate guarantee of the company (including the merged
entities). Interest on the bank overdrafts is payable at rates ranging from 19.5% to 23%; (March 2017:19.5% to 20%).
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(b)

(c)
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The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:December
March
2017
Effective
2017
(Loss)/Profit before tax from continuing operation
(3,199,617)
2,891,749
Expected tax based on statutory rate of 32%
129,884
32.00
925,360
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in
determining taxable profit
2,059,322
Effect of balancing charge
14,634
Effect of capital allowance on taxable profit
(1,501,287)
Effect of expenses that are deductible in
determining taxable profit
(5,341)
Additional tax assessment ( 2013-2015)
200,494
Income tax expense recognized in income statement
129,884
32.00
1,693,181
Effect of temporary difference in carrying
amount and tax base of PPE
(4,758,820)
(91)
164,211
Income tax expense
(4,628,936)
(59.18)
1,857,392
=======
====
======

Current taxation
Balance as at 1 April
Under provision
Current period provision: Education tax
Company income tax

Payments made during the year

22. Deferred tax liability

Balance b/forward
Arising during the year
As at 31 December

December
2017
N'000
1,422,602
158,215
1,053,375
1,211,590
2,634,192
2,634,192
=======

March
2017
N'000
676,952
130,409
187,123
1,305,564
1,492,687
2,300,048
(877,446)
1,422,602
=======

December
2017
N'000
4,385,556
20,068,183
24,453,739
=======

March
2017
N'000
3,119,122
1,266,434
4,385,556
======

4,300,000
=======

2,000,000
=======

4,297,931
======

1,647,125
======

N'000
6,160,731
======

N'000
6,160,731
=======

23. Share capital
(a)

Authorised –
8,600,000,000 Ordinary shares of 50 kobo each

(b) Allotted, called-up and fully paid 8,595,861,920 Ordinary shares of 50 kobo each

24. Share premium
Balance as at 31 December

Effective
32.00
71.21
0.51
(51.92)
(0.18)
6.93
58.55
5.68
64.23
====

25. Retained earnings
(a)

Balance as at 1 January
New share issue
Dividends paid
Adjustments on consolidation
Adjustment on container amortization
Pre-merger tax provision
Profit for the year

(b)

Earnings per share
Earnings per share (adjusted)
EBT on ordinary shares
EBIT on ordinary shares
Dividends per share (Prior year)

(c)

The number of shares was:

Ordinary shares

December
2017
4,710,148
(2,650,806)
29,330,038
(1,180,420)
(1,081,705)
1,429,319
=======
30,556,574
=======

March
2017
4,828,779
(1,152,988)
1,034,357
======
4,710,148
======

Kobo
17
17
(37)
37
-

Kobo
31
12
88
245
35

December
2017
Shares
(in Thousands)
8,595,862
-------------

March
2017
Shares
(in Thousands)
3,294,249
--------------

December
2017
N'000

March
2017
N'000

1,360,756
=======

1,360,756
=======

26. Other reserves

Accretion on revalued land and buildings
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At the adoption of IFRS the carrying amount of land and building was recognised as deemed cost. The accretion on revaluation of
land and building is recognised as none distributable reserve.

27
(a)

Reconciliation of cash flows
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital
Profit after tax
Add back:
Finance Income
Finance expense
Taxation expense

21(a)

N'000
1,429,319

N'000
1,034,357

(532,971)
6,927,374
1,129,368
8,953,090

(2,983)
5,195,659
1,857,392
8,084,425
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Adjustment for items not involving the movement of cash:

Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of Property Plant and Equipment
Additions in provisions for employee benefits
(Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Adjustment on consolidation

12,13
12
19(b)
7,9

December
2017
1,989,071
9,378,281
663,204
6,959
29,330,037
50,320,642
=======

March
2017
1,903,328
4,519
100,959
(678)
10,092,553
=======

(12,369,462)
(10,293,058)
83,988,693
61,326,173
=======

(2,866,632)
(925,991)
7,413,798
3,621,175
=======

(b) Changes in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in inventory
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables (including vat paid)

28

Related party transactions
The company's related parties include the ultimate parent company, AB InBev, SAB-Miller Finance BV and SAB-Miller Plc a
subsidiary of AB InBev; its group entities; the directors, their close family members and employees who are able to exert a
significant influence on the company's operating policies. These may also include key management personnel having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly.
Brauhaase International Management GMBH and its ultimate holding company as at 31 December, 2017 held an equity interest
of 72.17% in International Breweries Plc.
The period end balances with companies related to the ultimate holding company are as follows:

Receivables from parent company
Receivables from other related parties
Total receivables from related parties
Payables to parent company
Payables to other related parties
Total payables to related parties

December
2017
N'000
623,403
623,403
======
44,349,369
44,349,369
=======

March
2017
N'000
78,041
78,041
====
606,883
6,356,325
6,963,207
======

All outstanding balances with these related parties are priced on arm's length basis and are to be settled within the agreed
periods. None of the balances are secured and do not bear interest.
29

Guarantees and other financial commitments
There are certain lawsuits and claims pending against the Company in various courts of Law which are being handled by
external legal counsels.
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In the opinion of the directors and based on independent legal advice, contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date in respect of
pending litigation claims by the company on default of contractual obligation are not likely to arise, thus no provision has been
made in the financial statements.
30

Going concern
Management has made an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the company
has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial
statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

31

Post balance sheet events
There were no post balance sheet events which could have a material effect on the state of affairs of the company as at 31
December, 2017 and the profit for the year ended on the date.

32

Responsibilities of directors on the financial statements
In accordance with the provisions of Sections 334 and 335 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap. C20 LFN 2004, the
company's directors are responsible for the preparation of the annual financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at 31 December, 2017 and of its loss for the
period ended on that date, and comply with the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C20 LFN 2004. These
responsibilities include ensuring that:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

33

adequate internal control procedures are instituted to safeguard assets and prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities;
proper accounting records are maintained;
applicable accounting standards are followed; and
suitable accounting policies are used and consistently applied.
it is appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis unless it is presumed that the
Company will not continue in business.

Comparative figures
Certain prior year figures have been restated or reclassified in line with the current period's position.

34

Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the company on 19 March, 2018.

35

Risks arising from financial instruments
International Breweries' activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk (foreign exchange risk, cash flow interest risk,
product risk and equity risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The company analyses each of these risks individually as well as on an
interconnected basis and defines strategies to manage the economic impact on the company's performance in line with its
financial risk management policy. The management meets on a frequent basis and is responsible for reviewing the results of the
risk assessment, approving recommended risk management strategies, monitoring compliance with the financial risk
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management policy and reporting to the Board of Directors.
Credit risk
Credit risk encompasses all forms of counterparty exposure, i.e. where counterparties may default on their obligations to IB Plc in
relation to lending, settlement and other financial activities. The company has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
counterparty credit risk is closely monitored.
Liquidity risk
International Breweries' primary sources of cash flow have historically been cash flows from operating activities, the issuance of
debt, bank borrowings and the issuance of equity securities.
The company believes that cash flows from operating activities, available cash and cash equivalent and short term investments
and access to borrowing facilities, will be sufficient to fund capital expenditures and financial instrument liabilities. It is the
intention of the company to continue to reduce its financial indebtedness through a combination of strong operating cash flow
generation and equity contribution by members.
Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the financial results of the company will be adversely impacted by unfavorable changes in
exchange rates to which the company is exposed. The company incurs foreign currency risk on borrowings, purchases and interest
expense and does not currently use any derivatives to manage such exposure.
The carrying value of the company's foreign currency denominated liabilities as at the reporting date was as follows;

Trade and other Payables
SA Rand
US Dollar
Euro
Currencies Total

Dec.2017
N'000
772,368
39,224,861
6,860,924
46,858,153
--------------

Mar 2017
N'000
31,241
24,457
55,698
----------

----------

7,962,232
------------

----------

9,644,342
-------------

46,858,153
=======

31,241
17,631,031
17,662,272
=======

Borrowings
US Dollar
Intra-group liabilities
US Dollar
Total Foreign exchange risk
SA Rand
US Dollar
Euro
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2017

Revenue
Bought-in materials and services
Value added

9-Month ended
December
2017
N'000
36,527,807
(27,653,976)
8,873,831
========

100
===

12-Month ended
March
2017
N'000
32,711,218
(24,265,518)
8,445,700
=======

100
===

2,908,935
2,650,521
6,513,991

32
30
73

2,309,220
1,903,328
1,341,403

27
23
16

(4,628,936)
1,429,320
8,873,831
=======

(51)
16
100
===

1,857,392
1,034,357
8,445,700
=======

22
12
100
===

%

%

Distribution of value added:
To pay employees' salaries, wages and
fringe benefits
To provide for maintenance of assets – amortisation
To pay bank interest
To pay Government –
In taxes
Retained Earnings
Value added
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Capital employed:
Share capital
Share premium
Profit and loss account
Shareholders' fund
Other reserve

9 Months
----------------------------12 Months-----------------------December
March
March
March
March
2017
2017
2016
2015
2014
N'000
N'000
N'000
N'000
N'000
4,297,931
1,647,125
1,647,125
1,647,125
1,647,125
6,160,731
6,160,731
6,160,731
6,160,731
6,154,725
30,556,574
4,710,148
4,828,779
2,999,647
2,107,317
41,015,236
12,518,004
12,636,635
10,807,503
9,909,167
1,360,756
1,360,756
1,360,756
1,360,756
1,360,756
42,375,992
13,878,760
13,997,391
12,168,259
11,269,923
======== ======== ======== ======== ========

Represented by: Property, Plant & Equipment
Intangible assets
Other receivables/Trade investments
Deferred tax asset
Total Non-current assets
Current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

191,554,980
432,592
1,481,590
20,298,380
213,767,542
40,053,162
--------------253,820,704
------------------

31,748,068
45,738
1,229,680
33,023,486
11,939,249
------------44,962,735
----------------

25,216,244
54,923
127,458
22,841,925
8,083,481
------------33,482,106
----------------

22,679,843
54,383
1,000
106,699
18,795,469
7,329,665
-----------30,171,590
----------------

18,677,771
22,444
1,000
94,254
16,412,444
5,575,071
------------24,370,540
----------------

167,878,669
43,566,043
211,444,712
--------------42,375,992
=======

26,052,094
5,031,881
31,083,975
-------------13,878,760
=======

15,846,886
3,637,829
19,484,715
-------------13,997,391
=======

(9,975,208)
(8,028,123)
(18,003,331)
-------------12,168,259
=======

(6,604,447)
(6,496,170)
(13,100,617)
-------------11,269,923
=======

36,527,807
(3,199,616)
4,628,936
1,429,320
======

32,711,218
2,891,749
(1,857,392)
1,034,357
=======

23,269,364
3,656,826
(1,004,078)
2,652,748
======

20,649,295
2,815,554
(869,064)
1,946,490
======

18,493,907
3,925,500
(1,820,000)
2,105,500
=======

17
17
4.93

31
12
4.21

81
31
32
4.25

59
23
25
3.69

64
24
3.42

Highlights:
Revenue
(Loss)/ Profit before taxation
Tax expense
Profit after taxation
Financial ratios:
Earnings per share (kobo)
Earnings per share (kobo) (adjusted)
Dividends per share (kobo) (declared)
Net assets per share (Naira)

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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NOTE
ETON

BREWERIES PLC
PLC

INTERNATIONAL BREWERIES PLC

Electronic Delivery Mandate Form
Dear Sir/Madam,
To enable you receive your Annual Reports promptly, your company wishes to introduce electronic delivery of Annual Reports,
Proxy Forms and other statutory documents to shareholders.
With this service, instead of receiving the hard copy of our Annual Report and other corporate documents in future, you can
elect to receive a soft copy of the Annual Report, Proxy Form, through the electronic link to be forwarded to your email
address or opt to elect receive a soft copy of the (Compact Disk) of the Annual Report by post.
Please complete this self-addressed form to capture your preference and return the completed form to:
The Managing Director
APEL CAPITAL REGISTRARS
8, Alhaji Bashorun Street,
Off Norman Williams
S. W. Ikoyi, Lagos
or any of their branches nationwide
Muyiwa Ayojimi
.
Company Secretary
I, ______________________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
OF ____________________________________________________________________________________________________
ANNUAL REPORT, PROXY FORM, PROSPECTUS, NEWSLETTER AND STATUTORY DOCUMENTS OF INTERNATIONAL BREWERIES
TO ME, THROUHG:
PLEASE TICK ONE OPTION ONLY
ELECTRONIC COPY VIA A COMPACT DISK (CD) SENT TO MY POSTAL ADDRESS
OR
I WILL DOWNLOAD FROM THE WEB ADDRESS FORWARDED TO MY E-MAIL ADDRESS BELOW:
MY EMAIL ADDRESS:
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:
By enrolling in electronic delivery service, you have agreed to receive future announcements/shareholder communication
materials stated above by E-mail?COmpact Disk (CD)/Internet Address (URL). These materials can be made available to you
electronically, either sent annually or annually, Annual Report, Proxy Form, Prospectus and Newsletters are examples of
shareholders communication that can be made available to you electronically. The subscription enrollment will be effective for
all your holdings International Breweries Plc. on an on-going basis unless you change or cancel your enrollment.
This intiative is in line with our determination to help protect our planet’s environment, and the consolidated SEC rule 128 (E)
of September 2011 which states that a public company may dispatch Annual Reports and Notices of General Meetings to
Shareholders by electronics means

_________________________________________
Name (Surname First)

_________________________________________
Signature and Date

PROXY FORM
INTERNATIONAL BREWERIES PLC

No. of Shares

st

41 Annual General Meeting to be held in the Conference Hall,Protea
Hotel,Nekede Pocket Layout, Owerri, Imo State on Wednesday 30 May, 2018
at 10.a.m.
I/We………………………........................................…………………… of
...................................……………………………….. being a
member/members of International Breweries Plc hereby appoint
………………………………………………… or failing him, the Chairman of
the meeting as my/our proxy to act and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at
the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 30 May 2018.
Dated this ………day of ……………………….2018
Shareholder Signature………………………………………….
*Delete as necessary
The Proxy Form should NOT be completed and sent to the address overleaf if
the member will be attending the meeting
NOTES:
1
A member (shareholder) who is unable to attend an Annual General
Meeting is allowed by law to vote by proxy and this Proxy Form has been
prepared to enable such shareholder exercise the right to vote despite
not physically present at the meeting
2. The Chairman of the meeting has been entered on the form to ensure
that someone will be at the Meeting to act as your proxy but if you wish
you may insert in the blank space on the form (marked **) the name of
any person whether member (shareholder) of the Company or not who
will attend the Meeting and vote on your behalf instead of the Chairman
of the meeting.
3. Please sign this Proxy Form and post or deliver it to reach the Registrars –
Apel Registrars 8 AlhajiBashorun Street, Off Norman Williams, SW IkoyiLagos not later than 48hrs to the time of holding the meeting on the 9
May, 2018; If executed by a Corporation the form must be sealed with
the Common Seal or under the hand of an officer of attorney duly
authorized.
4. The proxy must produce the Admission Card (below) to the meeting

Resolutions

For

Against

Abstain

To ratify/reelect Annabelle Degroot
as a Director
To ratify/re-elect Zuber Momoniat
as a Director
To elect HRM Nnaemeka Achebe
as a Director
To elect HRM Peter Anugwu as a Director
To elect Michael Ajukwu as a Director
To elect Abiye Tobin-West as a Director
To elect Philip Redman as a Director
To elect Michael Daramola as a
director
To elect Godwin Oche as a Director
To appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers ‘Pwc’
as Independent Auditors of the Company
To authorize the Directors to fix the
remuneration of the Independent Auditors
To elect/re-elect members of the
Audit Committee
To fix the remuneration of the Directors
To authorize the Company to produce
goods and services necessary for its
operations from related Companies in
compliance with NSE Rules
To approve special resolutions 8a-d on
the agenda.
Please indicate with an “x” in the appropriate box how you wish your votes to
be cast on the resolutions referred to above. Unless otherwise instructed the
proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his discretion.

ADMISSION FORM
Please admit the shareholder named on this Admission Card or his duly appointed proxy to the 41stAnnual General Meeting to be held at the
Protea Hotel, Nekede Pocket Layout, Owerri, Imo State on Wednesday 30 May, 2018 at 10 a.m.

………………………………………………
Name of Shareholder

………………………………………….
Number of Shares

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Address of Shareholder
………………………………………
Signature of Shareholder or Proxy
This admission card must bear a stamp/postage stamp and be produced by the shareholder or his proxy in order to obtain entry to the
meeting. Tear off and retain it for admission to the meeting.
Shareholders or their proxies are requested to sign the Admission Card before attending the meeting.

………………………………………
Company Secretary

Bringing people together for a better world

